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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Background

Clearfield, Inc. (“Clearfield” or the “Company”) i@ Minnesota corporation which was founded in 1979.
Our corporate headquarters are located at 7050 atkanAvenue North, Suite 100, Brooklyn Park,
Minnesota, 55428, and our corporate website is vebearfieldconnection.com. The information avaiéabl
on our website is not part of this Report. You aaoess, free of charge, our filings with the Séiesrand
Exchange Commission, including our annual reporform 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q,
current reports on Form 8-K and any other amendsnnthose reports, through the “About Clearfield”
link at our website, or at the Commission’s webattaww.sec.gov.

Description of Business

Clearfield, Inc. manufactures, markets and sellerhto-end fiber management and enclosure platform
that consolidates, distributes and protects filsat moves from the inside plant to the outsidexpéand all

the way to the home, business and cell site. Torapgany has extended this product line with a fiber
delivery platform of optical cable, connectors amidroduct that delivers fiber to environments poesly

not economically or environmentally viable. Then@pany has successfully established itself asweval
added supplier to its target market of broadbamdce providers, including independent local exaen
carriers (“ILEC") (telephone), multiple service optors (cable), wireless service providers, contipeti
local exchange carriers (“CLEC”) and municipal-owndilities. Clearfield has continued to expardl it
product offerings and broaden its customer baseglits years of operations.

By aligning its in-house engineering and techricawledge alongside its customers’ needs, the Coynpa
has been able to develop, customize and enhandagtsarom design through production. Substamptiall
all of the final build and assembly is completedC#arfield’s plants in Brooklyn Park, Minnesotadan
Mexico, with manufacturing support from a networkdmmestic and global manufacturing partners.
Clearfield specializes in producing these prodoat®oth a quick-turn and scheduled delivery ba$ise
Company deploys a hybrid sales model with somessaéle directly to the customer, some made through
two-tier distribution partners and some sales tghoariginal equipment suppliers who private lakgl i
products.

Products

Clearview Cassette

The Clearview™ Cassette, a patented technologfeisnain building block of the Company’s product
platform. The value of the building block approasthat Clearfield is the only company to provitie
needs of every leg of the telecommunications ndkwaeth a single building block architecture, redugi
the customers’ cost of deployment by reducing ladosits associated with training and reducing inmgnt
carrying costs.

Clearview Classic and Clearview Btu€learview Classic and Clearview Blue, is a systérfive parts
that nest together in the cassette’s main housisgpport a wide range of applications. Partsoeaadded
or removed as needed to support the environmewhioh it is deployed. Clearview Blue, while fully
compatible with Clearview Classic, is designedtfa utmost in modularity and scalability. It bildpon
the Clearview Classic by offering a smaller foatpend integrated slack storage and splicing fonetity.

Clearview xPAK:Engineered to land small port count fiber termova and optical components, the
patented xPAK is shipped flat and unassembledlowwig simple pictorial user instructions, a tedian
will assemble the device to match his field requieats at the installation site. Application eniments
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include cell back-haul, business class servicevelglj node segmentation, fiber exhaust scenartdiy u
sub-stations or fiber-to-the-desk deployment.

Connectivity and Optical Components

The Clearview system consolidates, distributespaticts fibers as they move from the inside platie
home and business. These fibers are either cairsxd directly for cable-to-cable deployment og ar
connectorized onto optical components that may émnet divide the signals they carry. We provide
products that meet a customer’s cable-to-cableoglepnt or optical component needs.

Cable-to-Cable Deploymerfiber Deeps a class of fiber assemblies that guaranteesnpeahce at .2dB
insertion loss — fully half that of the industraistiard. This metric extends the link loss budffetgvely,
extending the distance upon which fiber can beael. In addition, this 2dB improvement in optical
budget reduces power consumption by 10%. The psawengs, multiplied by even a small thousand home
network, is a significant contribution to a commntyts “go-green” efforts.

Optical ComponentsClearfield packages optical components for sigmalpling, splitting, termination,
multiplexing, demultiplexing and attenuation forsaamless integration within its fiber management
platform. This value-added packaging allows thst@mer to source from a single supplier and reduces
space requirements. The products are built artddde meet the strictest industry standards emguri
customers trouble-free performance in extreme detglant environments.

FieldSmart

Utilizing the Clearview Cassette and xPAK as buitgdblocks, FieldSmart is a series of panels, cakine
wall boxes and other enclosures that house theid@acomponents to provide a consistent desigmfro
the inside plant of the telco’s “central office” oable television’s “head-end”, all the way throutle
outside plant to the access network and throughedome. At each leg of the network, the Field$ma
platform delivers a modular and scalable archirectiiat allows the service provider to align theeipital
equipment expenditures alongside their subscribemnues.

Inside Plant The FieldSmart Fiber Crossover Distribution Sys{¢FxDS”) and high density FieldSmart
FxHD provides complete fiber management modulauity scalability across the fiber network. Using th
Clearview building block approach, each fiber mamagnt element provides modularity of physical fiber
protection in the environment in which it is placeBasily configured for initial placement and sogl
from 12-ports to a full rack of 1728-ports, the l&&mart FXDS requires only four unique blocks to
configure initial deployment. The user then plasést is needed on the frame as subscriber take rat
dictate. The FxHD is an integrated fiber manageraelution delivered via the Clearview Blue Cassett
With instant access to all cassettes, adaptersjuamgers, the frame is designed as a front accassef
meaning all installation is done from one sidehaf frame providing the option to reclaim the agglace
required for frame solutions that require rear asceand to use that space for other equipmenboe m
frames. The FxHD can be placed against a walk @aglata center co-location environments, or lhack
back.

Outside Plant:The FieldSmart Fiber Scalability Center (“FSC”)aisnodular and scalable outside plant
cabinet that allows rollout of Fiber-to-the-Premisgvices by communication service providers witheou
large initial expense. Each outside plant catdtaes feeder and distribution splices, splitteosinectors
and slack cable neatly and compactly, utilizinddfiested designs to maximize bend radius protegctio
connector access, ease of cable routing and phywiotection, thereby minimizing the risk of fiber
damage. The FSC product, with the Clearview cbssetits heart, has been designed to scale wéth th
application environment as demand requires anddoae service turn-up time for the end-user.

Access NetworkEieldSmart Fiber Delivery Point (“FDP”) is a sexigf enclosure systems that incorporates
the delivery of fiber connectivity to the neighbodd or business district in the most cost-effediprint
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possible. This family of wall-mount enclosures\pdes 12 to 144 ports of connectivity for multi-diirgy
unit fiber deployments, fiber demarcation, secusitgtems (CCTV), telecommunications room needs and
horizontal/intermediate cross-connects.

Access NetworkFieldSmart Small Count Delivery (“SCD”) is a siof enclosure systems that are
packaged to make landing small count fiber mord-efisctive and efficient than previously thought
possible. This family of wall-mount enclosuresngla and drop cable cases provide up to 12 ports of
connectivity when fiber management is critical bigth-count density is required. The FieldSmart S€D
targeted for application environments such as baltkhaul, business class service delivery, node
segmentation, fiber exhaust in a field pedestdd;station turn-up or fiber-to-the-desk deployment.

FieldShield

FieldShield is a patent-pending fiber delivery negetlaimed at reducing the cost of broadband deployme
FieldShield takes industry standard glass and makasier and less expensive to install. FieldBistarts
with a ruggedized microduct designed to supporaailal, direct bury, and inside plant “last mitegeds.
Created from the most rugged HDPE polymers, Figl&Microduct is strong enough to be placed using
traditional methods of boring and plowing, leveragexisting conduit placement equipment, as well as
newer, less disruptive technologies such as mieraching or saw cutting.

FieldShield Pushable Fiber easily slips through mmeroduct's smooth inner wall. Utilizing bend-
insensitive glass, FieldShield Pushable Fiber gslable in a variety of fiber counts: 1 to 12 fibém a 3mm
jacket and up to 24 fibers in a 4mm jacket. Avaidan bulk reels or factory terminated, FieldStieffers
total installation flexibility. FieldShield Pushiadiber can be pushed by hand up to 100 feetdistances
up to 500 feet for direct bury applications and 8t for plenum and riser environments with the of
the FieldShield Assist Module, Clearfield’'s cordedrill-driven machine. A factory pre-connectodze
FieldShield Pushable Connector eliminates costhpdan the field and presents reliable, consistard
guaranteed performance along with lower instalfatiosts. After being installed in the microdulsg $lip-
resistant protective housing is removed and theector snaps together - all in seconds, providingsa-
effective, tech-friendly means of installing optitiaer without jeopardizing fiber protection.

The FieldShield Multiport SmarTerminal extends teach of FieldShield optical fiber to the hardened
connector marketplace. Teaming a FieldShield Falsi2onnector with a field-installable, tool-lessast
housing that provides a water tight seal decreassallation and maintenance time, while providing
superior durability and reliability in the drop seent of the network. These new solutions, Fieldshi
Hardened Connectors and the FieldShield Multiparta8erminal, bring together the advantages of
hardened connector technology with the ease ocAndecost reductions associated with pushable fiber.

CraftSmart

CraftSmart is a full line of optical protection lleenclosures, extending Clearfield presence infithex
industry. The CraftSmart Fiber Protection Pedss(dfPP”) and CraftSmart Fiber Protection Vaults
(“FPV") are integrated solutions, optimized to hedseldSmart products at the last mile access mbint
the network in above-grade or below-grade insialhat

CraftSmart aims to optimize fiber protection andrage while ensuring industry standards. Utilizing
methods of sealing and below-grade protection,cpigith Clearfield innovation, CraftSmart is a tlway
solution for the deployment of passive optics fritv@ central office/head-end to the customer premise

Cable Assemblies

Clearfield manufactures high quality fiber and ceppssemblies with an industry-standard or customer
specified configuration. Industry-standard assésliluilt include but are not limited to: single aediber,
multimode fiber, multi-fiber, CATV node assemblySD Telco, DS 3 (734/735) coax, Category 5e and 6,
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SCSI, Token Ring, and V.35. In addition, Cleadiglengineering services team works alongside the
engineering design departments of our original gmgeint manufacturer (“OEM”) customers to design and
manufacture custom solutions for both in-the-boxvali as network connectivity assemblies specific t
that customer’s product line.

Markets

FTTP

Fiber to the Premise (also called Fiber to the Homa means of delivering the highest possiblelled
bandwidth directly to the user. The Company’'ssaled marketing efforts have principally been fecus
on the U.S., with investments in Canada and thé@@aan regions added in recent years.

FTTB
Fiber to the Business is the rapid expansion d@rfdervices, principally by multiple service (cabi)
operators to penetrate the business marketplace.

FTT-Cell site

Fiber to the Cell site is the trend in which wissdeservice providers are re-focusing their efféndsn
building towers for coverage to enhancing theirazage for bandwidth. Fiber is the medium of chéice
their upgrade. Currently, a very small percentafghese cell sites are served by fiber.

DAS

A distributed-antenna system, or DAS, is a netwafrkpatially separated antenna nodes connected to a
common source via a transport medium that prowidesess service within a geographic area or stinect
DAS antenna elevations are generally at or bel@vctiitter level and node installations are compRdier

may be used to backhaul data from the antenna.

Build to Print

In addition to a proprietary product line desigfetthe broadband service provider marketplaceadikdd
provides contract manufacturing services for oagjgquipment manufacturers requiring copper aner fib
cable assemblies built to their specification

Competition

Competitors to the FieldSmart product lines inc|uuig are not limited to, Corning Cabling Systeins,,
OFS (Furukawa Electric North America, Inc.), AFLI@@mmunications (a subsidiary of Fujikura Ltd.),
Fujikura Ltd.,Alcatel, Inc., and TE Connectivity, Inc. (formerfyyco Electronics). Competitors to the
CraftSmart product line include Emerson Network Bgwa subsidiary of Emerson Electric Co., and
Charles Industries, Ltd. Competitors to FieldShigiclude M2FX. Nearly all of these firms are
substantially larger than Clearfield and as a tasaly be able to procure pricing for necessary comapts
and labor at much lower prices. Clearfield belgeetiet it has a competitive advantage with custemwio
can leverage the cost savings the Clearview Cassaftt provide and those who require quick-turnh-hig
performance customized products, and that itésmtpetitive disadvantage with customers who prialbjp
seek large volume commodity products.

Sources of Materials and Outsourced Labor

Numerous purchased materials, components, and &bansed in the manufacturing of the Company’s
products. Most of these are readily available frooitiple suppliers. However, some components and
outsourced labor are purchased from a single ionitetl number of suppliers. The loss of accesotue
components and outsourced labor could have anssleffiect on our ability to deliver products oimaely
basis and on our financial performance.



Major Customers and Financial Information about Gearaphic Areas

The following table summarizes customers comprisiffo or more of net sales for the years ended
September 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013:

Year Ended September 30,

2015 2014 2013
Customer A 25% 19% 19%
Customer B * 21% 23%

* Less than 10%

As of September 30, 2015, Customers C and A acedufar 17% and 14% of accounts receivable,
respectively. As of September 30, 2014, Customacc@unted for 10% of accounts receivable.

The Company allocates sales from external custotoageographic areas based on the location to which
the product is transported. Sales outside theedrfiitates are principally to Canada, Central andhSo
America. The following table presents our domeatid international sales for each of the last tfhiseal
years:

Year Ended September

2015 201« 2013
United States $ 55,324,000 $ 52,687,000 $ 50,358,000
All Other Countries 5,000,000 5,358,000 2,995,000

Total Net Sales $ 60,324,000 $ 58,045,000 $ 53,353,000

Patents and Trademarks

As of September 30, 2015, we had five patents gdaanhd five patent applications pending inside the
United States. We have also developed and arg trsidemarks and logos to market and promote our
products, including Clearviety FieldSmart, FieldShiel®, and CraftSmar®.

Backlog

Backlog reflects purchase order commitments forppaducts received from customers that have ybéto
fulfilled. Backlog orders are generally shippedhini three months. The Company had a backlog of
$3,540,000, $3,340,000, and $8,638,000 as of Séyete®®, 2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively.

Seasonality

We are affected by the seasonal trends in the indsisve serve. We typically experience sequdtial
lower sales in our first and second fiscal yearrtgug, primarily due to customer budget cycles)agpent
schedules, some customer geographical concensa®well as standard vacation and holiday calendar
Sales usually reach a seasonal peak in our thadtdaamth fiscal quarters.

Product Development

Product development for Clearfield’s product limegram has been conducted internally. We belieat t
the communication industry environment is consya@tlolving and our success depends on our abdlity t
anticipate and respond to these changes. Our ietosinalyze the environment and technology amidkw
to develop products that simplify our customerssihass by developing innovative high quality praduc
utilizing modular design wherever possible. Redeand development are reflected in Selling, Gégera
Administrative expenses and are not material totregall expense total.
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Employees

As of September 30, 2015, the Company had 182ifaé-employees. We also employ seasonal, part-time
employees and independent contractors. None ofropioyees are covered by any collective bargaining
agreement. We believe our employee relations gooel.

Segment Reporting

The Company operates in a single reportable segment
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our results of operations could be adversely affgttnow that the stimulus funds of the American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act are fully allocateigrojects are nearing completion.

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (the RAR), widely known as the “Stimulus Bill,” was
enacted in February 2009. The ARRA allocated ®illibn in grants, loans and loan guarantees for
broadband/wireless initiatives for rural un-senasdl underserved geographies across the countty, wit
these initiatives administered by several fedegalhaies. This funding is available to a wide wgrief
organizations, including our customers and prospeaustomers, to purchase and implement network
infrastructure and services to improve broadban@i@me. As part of the criteria established byf¢leral
agencies administering these programs, the prdjetts funded through the federal stimulus plantrbas
approved by the state or states in which the projeil be located.

All ARRA funding for these broadband/wireless iaitves was allocated to awarded applicants pritheo
start of this fiscal year. The majority of thesejpcts were nearing completion by the end of figear
2013.

National Broadband Plan’s transitioning from the USto the CAF program may cause our customers
and prospective customers to delay or reduce pusgsa

In October of 2011, the Federal Communications Cmsion approved the National Broadband Plan
which called for the restructuring of the long-stery USF (Universal Service Fund). A key elemeint o
this program is the transition out of the USF pawogr which awards an operating subsidy to
telecommunications companies providing serviceigb-eost serving areas, to the Connect America Fund
(CAF) which would provide a capital expenditure sidly for the build-out of the country’s broadband
network. In addition, other universal service amtdr-carrier compensation reforms scheduled tarbieg

the coming years will eliminateubsidies that carriers have traditionally relipmto support service in
high-cost, rural areas. Our customers or prosgediistomers may delay purchases until the financia
impact to them from the transition to the CAF beesmlear. To the extent our customers or prospecti
customers receive reduced subsidies under the @&ff,may reduce the spending associated with their
projects, delay projects, or not pursue projeéisy of these actions may result in reduced demanddr
products with these customers or prospective clestam

A significant percentage of our sales in the labtree fiscal years have been made to a small nundfer
customers, and the loss of these major customeraldvadversely affect us.

In fiscal year 2015, Customer A comprised approxéye25% of net sales. In fiscal year 2014, Cusiam
A and B comprised approximately 19% and 21%, raspayg, of net sales. Additionally, in fiscal year
2013, Customers A and B comprised approximately E9fb 23%, respectively, of net sales. These
customers purchase our products from time to timeugh purchase orders, and we do not have any
agreement that obligates these major customerngroh@se products in the future from us. The |dsgp
one or more of these customers, the substantiactied, delay or cancellation in orders from anglsu
customer or our inability to collect the accourdgseaivable from these customers, could have a rahteri
adverse effect on our business, financial poskiot results of operations.
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Intense competition in our industry may result iripe reductions, lower gross profits and loss of rket
share.

Competition in the telecommunications equipment ser@ices industry is intense. Our competitors may
have or could develop or acquire marketing, finalhadevelopment and personnel resources that exceed
ours. Our ability to compete successfully will dag on whether we can continue to advance the
technology of our products and develop new prodta¢sacceptance of our products among our cusgmer
and prospective customers and our ability to grdiel customer needs in product development, asawell
the price, quality and reliability of our productsyr delivery and service capabilities and our caraf
operating expenses.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to coepetcessfully against our current or future cortgost
Increased competition from manufacturers of telenomications equipment such as ours may result in
price reductions, lower gross profit margins, amtéased discounts to customers and loss of msinket
and could require increased spending by us onnesead development, sales and marketing and cestom
support.

Our results of operations could be adversely afestty economic conditions and the effects of these
conditions on our customers’ businesses.

Adverse changes in economic conditions, includiregrecent recession in the United States, havétedsu
and may continue to result in lower spending anmmgcustomers and contribute to decreased sates to
distributors and customers. Further, our busingsg be adversely affected by factors such as donsitu
in economic activity in specific geographic areagdhe telecommunications industry; social, pcdit or
labor conditions; or adverse changes in the auditlaland cost of capital, interest rates, tax sater
regulations. These factors are beyond our coritablay result in decreases in spending amongiess
and softening demand for our products. Declingemand for our products will adversely affect sales.
Further, challenging economic conditions also nmagdir the ability of our customers to pay for protu
and services they have purchased. As a resultastrflow may be negatively impacted and our adlove
for doubtful accounts and write-offs of accountseieable may increase.

Our operating results may fluctuate significantlydm quarter to quarter, which may make budgeting
for expenses difficult and may negatively affecetmarket price of our common stock.

Because many purchases by customers of our proaiats to a specific customer project and areyrext

by the customer from time to time through purchaskers, the short-term demand for our products can
fluctuate significantly and our ability to forecastles accurately from quarter to quarter is lichitd his
fluctuation can be further affected by the longsalycles necessary to obtain contracts to suppipment

for these projects, the availability of capitaftod our customers’ projects, changes, or delagsigomer
deployment schedules and the impact of the govemhnegulation to encourage service to unserved or
underserved communities, rural areas or other bigh areas on customer buying patterns. These long
sales cycles may result in significant effort exghesh with no resulting sales or sales that are ramtenin

the anticipated quarter. Demand for our projedlisalso depend upon the extent to which our cugiam
and prospective customers initiate these projeutistle extent to which we are selected to provigie o
equipment in these projects, neither of which caadsured. In addition, a sharp increase in demauld
result in actual lead times longer than quoted,asbdarp decrease in demand could result in estess.
These factors generally result in fluctuations, smes significant, in our operating results.



Other factors that may affect our quarterly opegatiesults including:

. the volume and timing of orders from and shipmémtsur customers, particularly significant
customers such as Customer A that accounted for 28% and 19% of sales in the years ending
September 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively;

. work stoppages and other developments affectingpleeations of our customers;

. the timi_n_g of and our ability to obtain new custaroentracts and the timing of revenue
recognition;

. the timing of new product and service announcements

. the availability of products and services;

. market acceptance of new and enhanced versiong giroducts and services;

. variations in the mix of products and services @lg s

. the utilization of our production capacity and eayges;

. the availability and cost of key components of praducts; and

. changes in the valuation allowance relating todaferred tax assets and the resulting income tax

benefits or expenses.

Further, we budget our expenses based in partmeceations of future sales. If sales levels imdipular
guarter are lower than expected, our operatindtsesill be affected adversely.

Because of these factors, our quarterly operagnglts are difficult to predict and are likely tary in the
future. If our operating results are below finaheinalysts’ or investors’ expectations, the magkate of
our common stock may fall abruptly and significgntl

To compete effectively, we must continually imprasdsting products and introduce new products that
achieve market acceptance.

The telecommunications equipment industry is chiarezed by rapid technological changes, evolving

industry standards, changing market conditions faeglient new product and service introductions and
enhancements. The introduction of products usieyy technologies or the adoption of new industry

standards can make our existing products, or pteduwer development, obsolete or unmarketable. In
order to remain competitive and increase saleswilleneed to anticipate and adapt to these rapidly
changing technologies, enhance our existing predamd introduce new products to address the chgngin
demands of our customers.

Many of our competitors have greater engineering product development resources than we have.
Although we expect to continue to invest resounegsoduct development activities, our efforts thiave

and maintain profitability will require us to belesgtive and focused with our research and developme
expenditures. Further, our existing and developgratage products may become obsolete if our
competitors introduce newer or more appealing teldgies. If these technologies are patented or
proprietary to our competitors, we may not be ablaccess these technologies.

If we fail to anticipate or respond in a cost-effee and timely manner to technological developragnt

changes in industry standards or customer requitesmer if we experience any significant delays in
product development or introduction, our businegserating results and financial condition could be
affected adversely.



We may face circumstances in the future that wiktsult in impairment charges, including, but not
limited to, significant goodwill impairment charges

If the fair value of any of our long-lived asse&ctkases as a result of an economic slowdown, atdow
in the markets where we sell products and senacasgdownturn in our financial performance anditufe
outlook, we may be required to record an impairnodarge on such assets, including goodwiill.

We are required to test intangible assets withfinde life periods for potential impairment annlyaénd

on an interim basis if there are indicators of #gepbal impairment. We also are required to ev&ua
amortizable intangible assets and fixed assetsinigairment if there are indicators of a possible
impairment. One potential indicator of impairménthe value of our market capitalization compated
our net book value. Significant declines in ourrke& capitalization could require us to record mate
goodwill and other impairment charges. Impairmgmrges could have a negative impact on our results
of operations and financial position, as well aghenmarket price of our common stock.

We rely on single-source suppliers, which could saudelays, increases in costs or prevent us from
completing customer orders, all of which could megdly harm our business.

We assemble our products using materials and coemp®nsupplied by various subcontractors and
suppliers. We purchase critical components for products, including injected molded parts and
connectors from third parties, some of whom arglsiror limited-source suppliers. If any of ouppliers

are unable to ship critical components, we may bable to manufacture and ship products to our
distributors or customers. If the price of theseponents increases for any reason, or if thesglisup
are unable or unwilling to deliver, we may havdina another source, which could result in intetioips,
increased costs, delays, loss of sales and qualitirol problems.

Further, the costs to obtain certain raw matedats supplies, such as fiber and copper cablingsusbect

to price fluctuations, which may be substantiatduese of global market demands. Many companikzeuti
the same raw materials and supplies in the progluadf their products as we use in our products.
Companies with more resources than us may havenpeatdive advantage in obtaining raw materials and
supplies due to greater purchasing power. Somematerials or supplies may be subject to regulatory
actions, which may affect available supplies. Remnore, due to general economic conditions in the
United States and globally, our suppliers may eepee financial difficulties, which could result in
increased delays, additional costs, or loss opalsr.

The termination or interruption of any of theseati@inships, or the failure of these manufacturers o
suppliers to supply components or raw materialgston a timely basis or in sufficient quantitiekely
would cause us to be unable to meet orders fopootucts and harm our reputation and our business.
Identifying and qualifying alternative suppliers ulg take time, involve significant additional costsd
may delay the production of our products. If wikttaforecast our manufacturing requirements aataly

or fail to properly manage our inventory with owntract manufacturers, we could incur additionatso
experience manufacturing delays and lose salesthdfuif we obtain a new supplier or assemble our
product using an alternative source of supply, vag meed to conduct additional testing of our presite
ensure the product meets our quality and perforsatandards. Any delays in delivery of our prodact
distributors or customers could be extended, and cmsts associated with the change in product
manufacturing could increase.

The failure of our third-party manufacturers to matture the products for us, and the failure af ou
suppliers of components and raw materials to supplgonsistent with our requirements as to quality,
quantity and timeliness could materially harm ousibess by causing delays, loss of sales, increases
costs and lower gross profit margins.



We face risks associated with expanding our salatsmle of the United States.

We believe that our future growth depends in pponuour ability to increase sales in internationatkets.
These sales are subject to a variety of risks,idich fluctuations in currency exchange ratesfftaimport
restrictions and other trade barriers, unexpecteghges in regulatory requirements, longer accounts
receivable payment cycles, potentially adversedansequences, and export license requirements. In
addition, we are subject to the risks inherentinducting business internationally, including podt and
economic instability and unexpected changes irodipkic and trade relationships. Currency fluctuesi
may also increase the relative price of our prodludnternational markets and thereby could alsasea
our products to become less affordable or les€ mienpetitive than those of international manufisctu
These risks associated with international operatinay have a material adverse effect on our revigome

or costs associated with international sales.

Our success depends upon adequate protection ofgaient and intellectual property rights.

Our future success depends in part upon our pitapyieechnology. We attempt to protect our prdarig
technology through patents, trademarks, copyrightstrade secrets. However, these legal meansl affo
us only limited protection and may not adequateldytgrt our rights or remedies to gain or keep any
advantages we may have over our competitors. Aaugly, we cannot predict whether these protections
will be adequate, or whether our competitors walvelop similar technology independently, without
violating our proprietary rights.

Our competitors, who may have or could developoguae significant resources, may make substantial
investments in competing technologies, or may ap@yand obtain patents that will prevent, limit, o
interfere with our ability to manufacture or marketr products. Further, although we do not belidnae
any of our products infringe the rights of othehérd parties may in the future claim our produaofsinge

on their rights, and these third parties may ass&imgement claims against us in the future.

We may litigate to enforce patents issued to ustamfend against claimed infringement of the tagbf
others or to determine the ownership, scope, aditsabf our proprietary rights and the rights dhers.
Any claim of infringement against us could involsignificant liabilities to third parties, could ngéice us
to seek licenses from third parties, and could gnéeus from manufacturing, selling or using ourduas.
The occurrence of this litigation, or the effectanf adverse determination in any of this typetajdtion,
could have a material adverse effect on our busjrigsncial condition and results of operations.

Our failure to protect or enforce our intellectpabperty rights could have a material adverse etiaour
business, results of operations and financial d¢mrdi

Further consolidation among our customers may resin the loss of some customers and may reduce
sales during the pendency of business combinatiand related integration activities.

We believe consolidation among our customers infilere will continue in order for them to increase
market share and achieve greater economies of. s€d@solidation has impacted our business as our
customers focus on completing business combinatindsntegrating their operations. In connectidiw
this merger and acquisition activity, our custonmasay postpone or cancel orders for our productdease
revised plans for technology or network expansiending consolidation activity. Customers integrati
large-scale acquisitions may also reduce theirhases of equipment during the integration periad, o
postpone or cancel orders.

The impact of significant mergers among our custgman our business is likely to be unclear until
sometime after such transactions are completeder Afconsolidation occurs, a customer may chamse t
reduce the number of vendors from which it purchaspiipment and may choose one of our competitors
as its preferred vendor. There can be no assurwateve will continue to supply equipment to the
surviving communications service provider afteuaibess combination is completed.
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We are dependent on key personnel.

Ouir failure to attract and retain skilled persoramlld hinder the management of our business gs@arch
and development, our sales and marketing effodsoan manufacturing capabilities. Our future sgsce
depends to a significant degree upon the contisaedces of key senior management personnel, imgud
Cheryl Beranek, our Chief Executive Officer and rddhill, our Chief Operating Officer. We have
employment agreements with Ms. Beranek and Mr.tH#t provide that if we terminate the employment
of either executive without cause or if the exaguterminates her or his employment for good reasen
would be required to make specified payments tmthas described in their employment agreements. We
have key person life insurance on Ms. Beranek andHill. Further, our future success also depemus
our continuing ability to attract, retain and maetie highly qualified managerial, technical and sale
personnel. Our inability to retain or attract gfiedl personnel could have a significant negatifeat and
thereby materially harm our business and finaraabition.

Product defects or the failure of our products toet specifications could cause us to lose custonaeis
sales or to incur unexpected expenses.

If our products do not meet our customers’ perfaroearequirements, our customer relationships may
suffer. Also, our products may contain defectéadrto meet product specifications. Any failure gyor
performance of our products could result in:

. lack of or delayed market acceptance of our praguct
. delayed product shipments;
. unexpected expenses and diversion of resourcesptace defective products or identify and

correct the source of errors;

. damage to our reputation and our customer reldtipas
. delayed recognition of sales or reduced sales; and
. product liability claims or other claims for damagbat may be caused by any product defects or

performance failures.

Our products are often critical to the performantéelecommunications systems. Many of our supply
agreements contain limited warranty provisions.thfse contractual limitations are unenforceabla in
particular jurisdiction or if we are exposed to gwot liability claims that are not covered by iremuce, a
claim could harm our business.

Our stock price has been volatile historically anthy continue to be volatile. The price of our commo
stock may fluctuate significantly.

The trading price of our common stock has beennaang continue to be subject to wide fluctuationar O
stock price may fluctuate in response to a numb&vents and factors, such as quarterly variations
operating results, announcements of technolognradvations or new products by us or our competitors
changes in financial estimates and recommendakigrsecurities analysts, the operating and stodaepri
performance of other companies that investors negnmdcomparable to us, and new reports relating to
trends in our markets or general economic condition

In addition, the stock market is subject to price &olume fluctuations that affect the market iéer
companies in general, and small-capitalizationhh@rhnology companies like us in particular. TEhes
broad market and industry fluctuations may advgra#fect the price of our common stock, regardless
our operating performance. Further, any failureubyto meet or exceed the expectations of financial
analysts or investors is likely to cause a dedimeur common stock price. Further, recent economi
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conditions have resulted in significant fluctuasom stock prices for many companies, including
Clearfield. We cannot predict when the stock m@rk@d the market for our common stock may stadhiliz
In addition, although our common stock is listedtom NASDAQ Stock Market, our common stock has at
times experienced low trading volume in our pdstnited trading volume subjects our common stock to
greater price volatility and may make it difficiitr our shareholders to sell shares at an attegtiice.

Future sales of shares of our common stock in tha&bfic market may negatively affect our stock price.

Future sales of our common stock, or the perceplianthese sales could occur, could have a Sogmifi
negative effect on the market price of our comnionlks In addition, upon exercise of outstandintjays,

the number of shares outstanding of our commorkstould increase substantially. This increaséyin,
could dilute future earnings per share, if any, aadld depress the market value of our common stock
Dilution and potential dilution, the availabilityf a large amount of shares for sale, and the pitibsitf
additional issuances and sales of our common stwok negatively affect both the trading price of our
common stock and the liquidity of our common stock.

Anti-takeover provisions in our organizational doments, Minnesota law and other agreements could
prevent or delay a change in control of our company

Certain provisions of our articles of incorporatamd bylaws, Minnesota law and other agreemenys ma
make it more difficult for a third-party to acqujrer discourage a third-party from attempting tquare,
control of our company, including:

. the provisions of our bylaws setting forth the athea notice and information requirements for
shareholder proposals, including nominees for threcto be considered properly brought before
shareholders;

. the right of our board of directors to establishrenthan one class or series of shares and todix th
relative rights and preferences of any such diffectasses or series;

. the provisions of Minnesota law relating to bussiesmbinations and control share acquisitions;
and
. the provisions of our stock option plans allowimg fhe acceleration of vesting or payments of

awards granted under the plans in the event offggaevents that result in a “change in control”
and provisions of agreements with certain of owrcexive officers requiring payments if their
employment is terminated and there is a “chang®mtrol.”

These measures could discourage or prevent a takebws or changes in our management, even if an
acquisition or such changes would be benefici@uioshareholders. This may have a negative efiect
the price of our common stock.

Compliance with changing regulation of corporate gernance and public disclosure may result in
additional expenses.

Keeping abreast of, and in compliance with, chagtgmvs, regulations and standards relating to aatpo
governance and public company disclosure requiregsniertiuding the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and in
particular Section 404 of that Act relating to mge@ent certification of internal controls, new thstrres
relating to “conflict minerals”, the regulationsthie Securities and Exchange Commission and ties ol

the NASDAQ Stock Market have required an increasedunt of management attention and external
resources. We intend to invest all reasonably rsacgsresources to comply with evolving corporate
governance and public disclosure standards, amdiirestment may result in increased general and
administrative expenses and a diversion of managetime and attention from revenue-generating
activities to compliance activities.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Clearfield leases a 70,771 square foot facility@0 Winnetka Avenue North, Brooklyn Park, Minnesot
consisting of our corporate offices, manufacturamgl warehouse space. The lease term is ten yagrs a
two months and commenced on January 1, 2015. Hmweypon proper notice and payment of a
termination fee of approximately $214,000, the Camphas a one-time option to terminate the lease
effective as of the last day of the eighth yeahefterm after the Company commenced paying bawe re

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no pending legal proceedings againstvohiing the Company for which the outcome is likel
to have a material adverse effect upon its findmpaaition or results of operations.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

Our common stock is traded on The NASDAQ Global ké¢asystem of The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC
under the symbol “CLFD.”

The following table sets forth the quarterly higtddow sales prices for our common stock for eadrigr
of the past two fiscal years.

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2015 High Low

Quarter ended December 31, 2014 $ 14.99 $ 10.82
Quarter ended March 31, 2015 15.54 11.21
Quarter ended June 30, 2015 16.75 12.90
Quarter ended September 30, 2015 20.28 12.76
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2014 High Low

Quarter ended December 31, 2013 $ 20.67 $ 13.47
Quarter ended March 31, 2014 26.09 17.41
Quarter ended June 30, 2014 24.84 14.56
Quarter ended September 30, 2014 16.90 12.35

The foregoing prices reflect inter-dealer pricethaut dealer markup, markdown, or commissions and
may not represent actual transactions.

Approximate Number of Holders of Common Stock

There were approximately 276 holders of recordusfammmon stock as of September 30, 2015.
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Dividends

We have never paid cash dividends on our commark.stéd/e currently intend to retain any earnings for
use in our operations and do not intend in theskeable future to pay cash dividends on our common
stock.

Stock Performance Graph

The information provided under this subsection lshai be deemed “filed” for purposes of Sectionaf8
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendedtichange Act), or incorporated by reference into
any filing of Clearfield, Inc. under the Securiti&st of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Actpease
shall be expressly set forth by specific referancich filing.

The following graph shows a comparison of the S-geianulative total return on Clearfield, Inc.’s caomon
stock relative to the NASDAQ Composite index, whilse Company has selected as a broad market index,
and the NASDAQ Telecommunications index, which @@mpany has selected as a published industry
index. The graph assumes an investment of $10M (winvestment of all dividends) is made in the
Company’s common stock and in each index on Sepe8th 2010 and its relative performance is tracked
through September 30, 2015. The returns showtased on historical results and are not intended to
suggest future performance.

COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Clearfield, Inc., The NASDAQ Stock Market Coosite Index
And The NASDAQ Telecommunications Index
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* $100 invested on September 30, 2010 in stockdex-including reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal
year ending September 30.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table describes shares of our commstoick that are available on September 30, 2015 for
purchase under outstanding stock-based awardssemed for issuance under stock-based awardbar ot
rights that may be granted in the future, underemuity compensation plans:

Number of
securities
Number of remaining available
securities to be Weighted- for future issuance
issued upon average exercise under equity
exercise of price of compensation plans
outstanding outstanding (excluding those
options, warrants options, warrants reflected in first
Plan Category and rights and rights column)
Equity compensation plans approve
by security holders
2007 Stock Compensation Plan 297,384 $ 5.29 354,114
Total 297,384 $ 5.29 354,114

All outstanding equity awards have been grantedyamt to shareholder-approved plans. In addition t
options, shares may be issued in the form of ptsttistock awards and other stock-based awards.

Issuer Repurchases

The Company repurchased a total of 33,021 sharesrafommon stock during the fourth quarter ofdlsc
year 2015 in connection with payment of taxes ugh@nvesting of restricted stock previously issuzd t
employees. The Company may also repurchase shs@part of its stock repurchase program approved
in November 2014 by which the Company's Board ofebiors authorized the repurchase of up to
$8,000,000 of the Company’s common stock.

The following table presents the total number @afreb repurchased during the fourth quarter of fid@a5
by month and the average price paid per share:

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Total Number of

Shares
Total Purchased as Part Approximate Dollar Value
Number Average of Publicly of Shares that
of Shares Price Paid Announced Plans May Yet Be Purchased
Period Purchased per Share or Programs Under the Program @
July 1-31, 2015 — $— — $—
August 1-31, 2015 33,02: 16.93 — —
September 1-30, 20: — — — —
Total 33,02: $16.93 — $7,150,843

(1) Amount remaining from the $8,000,000 repurchaskaitation approved by the Company’s B¢
of Directors in November 2014. Theogram does not obligate Clearfield to repurclaseparticuls
amount of common stock during any period. The refpase will be funded by cash on hand.
repurchase program is expected to continue indefynuntil the maximum dollar amount of ska
has been repurchased or until the repurchase pndgrearlier modified, suspended or terminate
the Board of Directors.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data has beenveerfrom our financial statements and should bd ea
conjunction with the Financial Statements and eelahotes thereto set forth in Item 8 and with
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€ahdition and Results of Operations” included in
Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Year Ended September 30

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Selected Income Statement Da

Net sales $ 60,323,917 $ 58,045,29: $ 53,353,08( $ 37,473,960 $ 35,192,53
Gross profit 24,867,95:¢ 24,598,76¢ 21,989,57¢ 15,285,72 14,658,35
Income from operations 7,051,35¢ 8,518,12¢ 7,444,73¢ 4,274,88. 3,716,20
Income tax expense (benefit) 2,475,23¢ 3,180,97¢ 2,803,172 (3,324,299) (2,316,142)
Net income 4,682,00¢ 5,432,851 4,733,844 7,701,19. 6,167,44
Net income per share basic $0.35 $0.42 $0.38 $0.62 $0.51
Net income per share diluted $0.34 $0.40 $0.36 $0.6(¢ $0.4¢
Selected Balance Sheet Data

Total assets $ 57,627,617 $ 51,847,89¢ $ 46,413,33¢ $ 37,740,33' $ 30,302,09
Long-term liabilities 1,311,232 - 21,101 37,643 61,79:
Shareholders’ equity 51,279,13(  46,746,63¢ 40,078,03¢ 34,685,90 26,229,17

*During the fourth quarter of fiscal years 2012 &t 1, the Company reversed a substantial porfien o
valuation allowance of the deferred tax assettiénaimount of $3,518,000 and $2,481,000, respegtivel
These reversals increased our net income by thatiiasinfior each of the years ended September 30, 2012
and 2011 and contributed $0.28 and $0.19 per dilsibare for the years, respectively.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

Statements made in this Annual Report on Form 1iorae Company'’s other SEC filings, in press reésa
and in oral statements, that are not statemenksstdrical fact are “forward-looking statementstich
forward-looking statements involve known and unknavgks, uncertainties and other factors which may
cause the actual results or performance of the @aynpo be materially different from the results or
performance expressed or implied by such forwaottitty statements. The words “believes,” “expects,”
“anticipates,” “seeks” and similar expressions tifgrforward-looking statements. Readers are cagtib

not to place undue reliance on these forward-laplétatements, which speak only as of the date the
statement was made. The risks and uncertaintiecthid cause actual results to differ materialygl a
adversely from those expressed or implied by thwdiad-looking statements include those risks dbeci

in Part I, Item 1A “Risk Factors.”

Overview of Business:The Company sells highly configurable fiber manageimand connectivity
products to broadband service providers serving-HEP, FTTB, FTT-Cell site markets in the U.S. amd
certain limited markets outside the U.S., currentiyntries in the Caribbean, Central America anatl$o
America. The Company'’s sales channels includecticecustomer, through distribution partners, tmd
original equipment suppliers who private labelpiteducts. The Company’s products are sold byaitsss
employees and independent sales representatives.

Critical Accounting Policies: In preparing our financial statements, we makevegts, assumptions and
judgments that can have a significant impact onsalgs, income or loss from operations and netnieco
or loss, as well as on the value of certain asmsddiabilities on our balance sheet. We beliewat there
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are several accounting policies that are critic@rt understanding of our historical and futurdéqverance,

as these policies affect the reported amountslesaxpenses and significant estimates and judigmen
applied by management. While there are a numbacadunting policies, methods and estimates affgctin
our financial statements, areas that are partigusagnificant include:

. Revenue recognition;

. Accounting for income taxes;

. Valuation and evaluating impairment of long-livesbats and goodwill; and
. Valuation of inventory.

Revenue RecognitionRevenue is recognized when persuasive evidence airangement exists, the
product has been delivered, the fee is fixed, daoep by the customer is reasonably certain arnelatioin

is reasonably assured. This generally occurs @hgument of product to the customer. Sales of the
Company’s products are subject to limited warraiilgations that are included in the Company’s term
and conditions. Also, the Company offers limitéscdunts and rebates to customers which are regorde
in net sales on an estimated basis as the salescagnized. The Company records freight revebilies!

to customers as sales and the related shippindhamdling cost in cost of sales. Taxes collectedhfr
customers and remitted to governmental authoriepresented on a net basis.

Income TaxesWe account for income taxes in accordance with Antag Standards Codification
(“ASC") 740, Income Taxesunder which deferred income taxes are recogrizsgd on the estimated
future tax effects of differences between the faialnstatement and tax bases of assets and liebititven
the provisions of enacted tax laws. Deferred inedax provisions and benefits are based on changes
the assets or liabilities from year to year. Inylong for deferred taxes, we consider tax regafaiof the
jurisdictions in which we operate, estimates ofifattaxable income, and available tax planningesgias.

If tax regulations, operating results, or the &piid implement tax-planning strategies vary, ajents to
the carrying value of deferred tax assets andili@si may be required. A valuation allowanceasarded
when it is more likely than not that a deferred &sset will not be realized. The recorded valuatio
allowance is based on significant estimates angmhts and if the facts and circumstances chahge, t
valuation allowance could materially change.

In accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, eeognize the financial statement benefit of a t@sitpn
only after determining that the relevant tax adtiijowould more likely than not sustain the position
following an audit. For tax positions meeting there likely than not threshold, the amount recogghin
the financial statements is the largest benefitltha a greater than 50 percent likelihood of bedadjzed
upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax arith. The Company recognizes interest and persalti
accrued on any unrecognized tax benefits as a coamp@f income tax expense.

As of September 30, 2015, the Company had U.Srdkded state net operating loss (“NOL") carry-
forwards of approximately $5,407,000 and $13,79,06spectively. The U.S. federal NOL carry foravar
amounts expire in fiscal years 2023 through 202®tfutilized. The state NOL carry forward amounts
expire in fiscal years 2016 through 2022 if notizeid. In fiscal year 2009, the Company completad
Internal Revenue Code Section 382 analysis of ake tarry-forwards and determined that all of the
Company'’s loss carry-forwards were utilizable antlrestricted under Section 382. The Company bas n
updated its Section 382 analysis subsequent to a6@9does not believe there have been any events
subsequent to 2009 that would impact the analysis.

As part of the process of preparing our financiatesnents, we are required to estimate our inc@xe t
liability in each of the jurisdictions in which wao business. This process involves estimatingaotual
current tax expense together with assessing tempditierences resulting from differing treatmerft o
items for tax and accounting purposes. Theserdiifees result in deferred tax assets and lialsilitid/e
must then assess the likelihood that these defearedssets will be recovered from future taxabt®me
and, to the extent we believe that recovery ismote likely than not or unknown, we must estabish
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valuation allowance. If the valuation allowanceresluced, the Company would record an income tax
benefit in the period in which that determinatienmiade. If the valuation allowance is increashd, t
Company would record additional income tax expense.

As of September 30, 2014, the Company’s remainglgation allowance of approximately $848,000
related to state net operating loss carry forwaBigring the fourth quarter of 2015, the Comparnsersed

a portion of its remaining valuation allowance aiity related to the expiration of state net oparat
losses in 2015. The remaining valuation allowaredance as of September 30, 2015 of $659,000 selate
entirely to state net operating loss carry forwavesdo not expect to utilize. The Company will tone

to assess the assumptions used to determine thenaimioour valuation allowance and may adjust the
valuation allowance in future periods based on ghain assumptions of estimated future income #net o
factors.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.Slefal jurisdiction, and various state jurisdictions
Based on its evaluation, the Company has concltitsdt has no significant unrecognized tax besefit
With limited exceptions, the Company is no longebjsct to U.S. federal and state income tax
examinations for fiscal years ending prior to 208Ue are generally subject to U.S. federal and gtat
examinations for all tax years since 2000 due tonet operating loss carryforwards and the utilcrabf

the carryforwards in years still open under statuite2007, the Company changed its fiscal yearfesrd
March 31 to September 30.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and GoodwillThe Company’s long-lived assets at September 3G 20
consisted primarily of property, plant and equipmgratents and goodwill. The Company reviews the
carrying amount of its property, plant and equiptreamd patents if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the assets nmybe recoverable. When this review indicates th
carrying amount of an asset or asset group exd¢bedsim of the future undiscounted cash flows etegec

to be generated by the assets, the Company reesgaizasset impairment charge against operations fo
the amount by which the carrying amount of the imgzhasset exceeds its fair value.

Determining fair values of property, plant and @moént and patents using a discounted cash flowadeth
involves significant judgment and requires the Campto make significant estimates and assumptions,
including long-term projections of cash flows, metrkonditions and appropriate discount rates. daugs

are based on historical experience, current mar&etls, consultations with external valuation saléstis

and other information. If facts and circumstancleange, the use of different estimates and assongpti
could result in a materially different outcome. efl@ompany generally develops these forecasts lmsed
recent sales data for existing products, planmaghgj of new product launches, and estimated expansi
of the FTTP market.

The Company operates as one reporting unit andwsvihe carrying amount of goodwill annually in the
fourth quarter of each fiscal year and more fretjyghevents or changes in circumstances indithase

the carrying amount of the assets may not be reablee The Company determines its fair value for
goodwill impairment testing purposes by calculatitsgmarket capitalization and comparing that te th
Company’s carrying value. The Company’s goodwilpairment test for the years ended September 30,
2015, 2014 and 2013 resulted in excess fair vakhae carrying value and therefore, no adjustmentewe
made to goodwill. During the year ended SepterBBeR015, there were no triggering events thataieid
goodwill could be impaired.

A significant reduction in our market capitalizatior in the carrying amount of net assets of antegpp
unit could result in an impairment charge. If taerying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its falue,
the Company would measure the possible goodwilbinmpent loss based on an allocation of the estimate
of fair value of the reporting unit to all of thaderlying assets and liabilities of the reportimg Lincluding
any previously unrecognized intangible assets. &eess of the fair value of a reporting unit othex
amounts assigned to its assets and liabilitiekeégrmplied fair value of goodwill. An impairmerads is
recognized to the extent that a reporting unitemed goodwill exceeds the implied fair value addwill.
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An impairment loss would be based on significartineges and judgments, and if the facts and
circumstances change, a potential impairment cbalce a material impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

No impairment of long-lived assets or goodwill legsurred during the years ended September 30, 2015,
2014 or 2013, respectively.

Valuation of Inventory The Company maintains a material amount of inventtr support its
manufacturing operations and customer demand. ifténtory is stated at the lower of cost or market
On aregular basis, the Company reviews its inwgrand identifies that which is excess, slow moang
obsolete by considering factors such as inventrgls, expected product life and forecasted s&emdd.
Any identified excess, slow moving and obsoleteemery is written down to its market value throwgh
charge to cost of sales. It is possible that &udit inventory write-down charges may be requirethe
future if there is a significant decline in deméodthe Company’s products and the Company does not
adjust its manufacturing production accordingly.

Results of Operations

Year ended September 30, 2015 compared to year eddseptember 30, 2014

Net sales for fiscal year 2015 increased 4% to3@0000 from net sales of $58,045,000 in 2014 esSal
growth was experienced from existing clients ad aglfrom the development of new accounts withe th
telecommunications industry. The growth in sahetudes gains from within Tier 3 Carriers, an ermegg
presence associated with Tier 2 Carriers who hanagianal footprint and cable providers, offsetidoyer
sales to our CLEC customer group.

As a result of the above factors, sales in fisedry2015 to commercial data networks and broadband
service providers were 91% of net sales, or $5408®Y compared to $53,627,000, or 92%, of net sales
fiscal 2014. Among this group, the Company recdi®e, 000,000 in international sales in fiscal y&@t5
versus $5,358,000 in fiscal year 2014. Sales &tsdcwith build-to-print manufacturing for origina
equipment manufacturers outside of the telecomnatinitzs market in 2015 were 9% of net sales, or
$5,502,000, compared to $4,418,000, or 8%, ofalessn fiscal year 2014. The Company allocatessa
from external customers to geographic areas basdtieolocation to which the product is transported.
Accordingly, international sales represented 8% @¥tdof net sales for the years ended September 30,
2015 and 2014, respectively.

The increase in net sales for the year ended Septe3f, 2015 of $2,279,000 compared to fiscal 264

is primarily attributable to an increase of $10,00D in net sales to our customer base of comnietaia
network providers, build-to-print and OEM manufaets, and broadband service providers, outsideeof t
CLEC group and international sales noted below,nadwmpared to 2014. The improvement was due to
increased deployments by the Company’s ILEC custenas well as expanded sales channels. Offsetting
this increase was a decrease of $7,470,000 refat@dlowdown in ongoing builds of a CLEC customer.
Net sales were also negatively affected by a deereainternational sales of $358,000 during thraesa
period. The Company does not have the abilityotedast future sales as revenue from all custoigers
obtained from purchase orders submitted from tiorténte. Accordingly, the Company’s ability to pietd
orders in future periods or trends affecting ordeffsiture periods is limited.

Cost of sales for fiscal year 2015 was $35,456,800ncrease of $2,009,000, or 6% from the $3300,

in fiscal year 2014. Gross margin was 41.2% sodi year 2015, as compared to 42.4% for fiscal yea
2014. Gross profit increased 1%, or $269,000, f&2#,599,000 for fiscal year 2014 to $24,868,000 fo
fiscal year 2015. The year-over-year increasegt of sales is primarily a result of increaseésablume.
Gross profit percentage decreased primarily asatref costs associated with operations relateithéo
addition of our Mexico manufacturing facility intéafiscal year 2014 in the amount of $249,000 aleitly
product mix changes of $601,000.
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Selling, general and administrative expense farafiyear 2015 was $17,817,000, up 11% compared to
$16,081,000 for fiscal year 2014. This increag®iimarily composed of higher compensation expeirses
the amount of $997,000 mainly due to additionalspenel and wage increases and one-time costs of
$137,000 associated with our move to expanded &pSrations which was completed in the second
quarter. Also, stock compensation expense incde$280,000 when compared to the same period of 2014
due to a higher amount of equity awards outstandiAgiditionally, depreciation increased $252,000
compared to the same period of 2014 primarily dumerease in leasehold improvements associatdd wit
our new facility.

Income from operations for fiscal year 2015 wa®$%$¥,000 compared to $8,518,000 for fiscal year 2014
This decrease is attributable to increased seljageral and administrative expense.

Interest income in fiscal year 2015 was $106,000pared to $96,000 for fiscal year 2014. The Compan
invests its excess cash primarily in FDIC-backewdklzertificates of deposit and money market account

Income tax expense for fiscal year 2015 was $200bcompared to $3,181,000 for fiscal year 201de D

to net operating loss utilization, income tax exgeeprimarily had a non-cash effect on the operatasip
flow for the years ended September 30, 2015 and.2TUhe decrease in tax expense of $706,000 frem th
year ended September 30, 2014 is primarily duestvehsed deferred tax expense resulting from lower
profitability in fiscal year 2015. The decreaséhia income tax expense rate to 34.6% for fiscat Y815
from 36.9% for fiscal year 2014 is primarily thesué of the Company reversing a portion of its reima
valuation allowance primarily related to the expira of state net operating losses in 2015 dultiegdourth
guarter of fiscal year 2015. Our provisions faxdme taxes include current federal alternative mimn

tax expense, state income tax expense and detax@xpense.

Net income for fiscal year 2015 was $4,682,000 @B8% per basic share and $0.34 per diluted share,
compared to $5,433,000 or $0.42 per basic shar&@#dg@ per diluted share for the year 2014.

Year ended September 30, 2014 compared to year eadseptember 30, 2013

Net sales for fiscal year 2014 increased 9% toGBEBO00 from net sales of $53,353,000 in 2013 esSal
growth was experienced from existing clients ad aglfrom the development of new accounts withe th
telecommunications industry. The growth in sahetudes gains from within Tier 3 Carriers, an ermegg
presence associated with Tier 2 Carriers who hawatianal footprint, cable providers as well asnon
traditional providers who are entering the U.S.kaair The Company also recorded a growing percentag
of its sales from accounts outside of the U.Sngypally Canada and the Caribbean regions of Centra
America.

As a result of the above factors, sales in fise#ry2014 to commercial data networks and broadband
service providers were 92% of net sales, or $5308®7 compared to $48,048,000, or 90%, of net sales
fiscal 2013. Among this group, the Company recdi$e, 358,000 in international sales in fiscal y2@it4
versus $2,995,000 in fiscal year 2013. Sales &sdcwith build-to-print manufacturing for origina
equipment manufacturers outside of the telecomnatioics market in 2014 were 8% of net sales, or
$4,418,000, compared to $5,305,000, or 10%, ofales in fiscal year 2013. The Company allocatkss
from external customers to geographic areas basetieolocation to which the product is transported.
Accordingly, international sales represented 9% @¥tdof net sales for the years ended September 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively.

The increase in net sales for the year ended Septe30, 2014 of $4,692,000 compared to fiscal 2648

is primarily attributable to an increase of $2,3@B) in international sales. Additionally, the Cang’s
net sales to our customer base of commercial datavonk providers, build-to-print and OEM
manufacturers, and broadband service providerssidmitof internationally noted above, increased
$2,329,000 for the year ended September 30, 20idynthue to higher demand in fiscal year 2014 when
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compared to fiscal year 2013. The Company doesianvé the ability to forecast future sales as regen
from all customers is obtained from purchase ordetsmitted from time to time. Accordingly, the
Company'’s ability to predict orders in future pelsoor trends affecting orders in future periodgmited.

Cost of sales for fiscal year 2014 was $33,447,800ncrease of $2,083,000, or 7% from the $31(884,

in fiscal year 2013. Gross margin was 42.4% sodi year 2014, as compared to 41.2% for fiscal yea
2013. Gross profit increased 12%, or $2,609,0@0m $21,990,000 for fiscal year 2013 to $24,599,000
for fiscal year 2014. The year-over-year increéaseost of sales and gross profit is a result ofeased
net sales. The increase in gross profit perceritagee result of a higher percentage of salescitsa
with optical component technologies, which gengradlve higher margins.

Selling, general and administrative expense farafiyear 2014 was $16,081,000, up 11% compared to
$14,545,000 for fiscal year 2013. This increasprimarily composed of $1,515,000 due to additional
personnel.

Income from operations for fiscal year 2014 wa$$8,000 compared to $7,445,000 for fiscal year 2013
This increase is attributable to increased nessahe higher gross margin.

Interest income in fiscal year 2014 was $96,000p=med to $92,000 for fiscal year 2013. The Company
invests its excess cash primarily in FDIC-backedklzertificates of deposit and money market acaount

Income tax expense for fiscal year 2014 was $30DR1¢compared to $2,803,000 for fiscal year 2018e D
to net operating loss utilization, income tax exqeeprimarily had a non-cash effect on the operatagi
flow for the years ended September 30, 2014 an8.2The increase in tax expense of $378,000 fram th
year ended September 30, 2013 is primarily dueterted tax expense resulting from higher profligbi

in fiscal year 2014. Our provisions for incomedsxnclude current federal alternative minimum tax
expense, state income tax expense and deferrexpaxse.

Net income for fiscal year 2014 was $5,433,000 @A% per basic share and $0.40 per diluted share,
compared to $4,734,000 or $0.38 per basic shar&@dé per diluted share for the year 2013.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At September 30, 2015, the Company had combineshbas of short-term cash and investments and long-
term investments of $34,286,000 as compared td 83300 at September 30, 2014. As of September 30,
2015, our principal source of liquidity was ourltasd cash equivalents and short-term investmditsse
sources total $25,996,000 at September 30, 20I16paed to $24,823,000, at September 30, 2014.
Investments considered long-term are $8,290,008eptember 30, 2015, compared to $8,302,000 at
September 30, 2014. Our excess cash is investedyrmacertificates of deposit backed by the Fdad
money market accounts. Substantially all of oumdfuare insured by the FDIC. We believe the conabine
balances of short-term cash and investments aldtigl@eng-term investments provide a more accurate
indication of our available liquidity. We had ran-term debt obligations at September 30, 204,
respectively.

We believe our existing cash equivalents and gieont-investments, along with cash flow from openasi
will be sufficient to meet our working capital amyestment requirements for beyond the next 12 hsont
The Company intends on utilizing its available casld assets primarily for its continued organiongho
and potential future strategic transactions, asasetxecution of the $8,000,000 share repurchagggm
adopted by the Board of Directors on November 0342

Operating Activities

Net cash generated from operations for the fiseat gnded September 30, 2015 totaled $6,848,086h C
provided by operations included net income of $2,680 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015,

21



which included non-cash expenses for depreciatimh @mortization of $1,216,000 and stock-based
compensation of $1,075,000, along with a non-ceestefit from deferred taxes of $2,342,000. The
Company has historically been utilizing its netigeg losses (“NOLSs") for taxes due and has hadhca
payments related to taxes of $51,000, $361,0005464,000 in the fiscal periods 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. When the NOLs are fully consumee, @ompany will no longer have this non-cash tax
benefit which will result in the Company havinguse cash for its tax expense. Changes betwee fisc
year 2015 and fiscal year 2014 in working capitains using cash included increases in inventory and
accounts receivable of $1,793,000 and $983,00Qe0tisely. The increase in inventory represents an
adjustment for seasonal demand along with chamgstecking levels for new product development. The
increase in accounts receivable is primarily attdble to increased sales in the quarter endec®épr

30, 2015. Accounts receivable balances can bgeinfled by the timing of shipments for customerqmtsj
and payment terms. Days sales outstanding, whieasores how quickly receivables are collected,
increased three days to 35 days from Septembe2@@ to September 30, 2015. Changes in working
capital items providing cash between fiscal yedr28nd fiscal year 2014 included an increase in@aus
payable and accrued expenses of $164,000 and @adedn other current assets of $121,000.

Net cash generated from operations for the fiseal gnded September 30, 2014 totaled $11,529(0&sh
provided by operations included net income of $3,d80 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014,
which included non-cash expenses for depreciatioth amortization of $700,000 and stock-based
compensation of $795,000, along with a non-caslefiteinom deferred taxes of $3,020,000. Changes
between fiscal year 2014 and fiscal year 2013 irking capital items providing cash included decesas

in accounts receivable and inventory of $2,810,808 $236,000, respectively. Accounts receivable
balances can be influenced by the timing of shigméor customer projects and payment terms. The
decrease in accounts receivable was primarilyabelt of significant payments received in the fiysarter
from one customer with a large balance at Septel@®e2013, and lower sales in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2014 compared to fiscal 2013, resulting substantially lower balance at September 30, 20h&
decrease in inventory reflects the fulfilment odlers that were in the Company’s backlog as of&epéer

30, 2013 and also represents an adjustment foorsglademand along with changes in stocking levals f
new product development. Changes in working chiptians using cash between fiscal year 2014 awdilfis
year 2013 included a decrease in accounts payatlaarued expenses of $1,234,000 and an incnease i
other current assets of $243,000. Changes in atc@ayable and accrued expenses primarily reflect
decrease related to fiscal year 2013 accrued bamympensation accruals of $2,691,000 which were paid
during the first quarter of fiscal year 2014.

Net cash generated from operations for the fiseat gnded September 30, 2013 totaled $4,339,086h C
provided by operations included net income of $4,080 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013,
which included non-cash expenses for depreciatioth amortization of $476,000 and stock-based
compensation of $754,000, along with a non-caslefitefnom deferred taxes of $2,564,000. Changes
between fiscal year 2013 and fiscal year 2012 irking capital items using cash included an increase
accounts receivable of $4,815,000, reflecting iaseel sales levels in the fourth quarter of 2018,an
increase in inventory of $2,655,000. Accounts iked#e balances can be influenced by the timing of
shipments for customer projects and payment terfirige increase in inventory reflects higher stocking
levels for existing products due to higher demamd for new product offerings including Clearvie\u®

and FieldShield. Changes in working capital itgmeviding cash between fiscal year 2013 and figeal
2012 included an increase in accounts payable ecrded expenses of $3,281,000. Changes in accounts
payable and accrued expenses reflect an increasenpioyee compensation accruals of $1,888,000
associated with higher sales.

Investing Activities

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, wd 4,543,000 in cash for the purchase of capital
equipment and patents. Included in this amounéeperchases of $3,027,000 in leasehold improvements
and office equipment for the build out of our nevinkksota facility which was completed in the fiscal

2015 second quarter and purchases of manufactaridgvarehouse equipment of $1,079,000. During
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fiscal year 2015, we purchased $10,374,000 of FiRd€ked certificates of deposit and sold $9,093@00
FDIC-backed certificates of deposit. The resuttash used in investing activities of $5,744,000s0cal
year 2015 as compared to $3,586,000 in fiscal §6a4. In the future, the Company intends to inuest
the necessary computer hardware and software eghjtoroptimize its business, along with appropriate
manufacturing equipment to continue to maintaiom@etitive position in manufacturing capability.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014, wd $4,455,000 in cash for the purchase of capital
equipment and prosecution of patents. Includedhia amount were purchases for manufacturing
equipment in the amount of $851,000. During thmesaeriod, we purchased $8,899,000 of FDIC-backed
certificates of deposit and sold $6,727,000 of Fb#cked certificates of deposit. The result i$azsed

in investing activities of $3,586,000 in fiscal y&®14 as compared to $114,000 in fiscal year 2013.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, wd 64,037,000 in cash for the purchase of capital
equipment and patents. Included in this amounéwwearchases for manufacturing equipment in the amou
of $947,000. During the same period we purcha8e®B8,000 of FDIC-backed certificates of deposit an
sold $9,600,000 of FDIC-backed certificates of dafpoThe result is cash used in investing acesitf
$114,000 in fiscal year 2013 as compared to $900D4in fiscal year 2012.

Financing Activities

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015, tinep@ny used $849,000 for the repurchase of common
stock. Also, the Company received $211,000 angd0®4Bduring the fiscal year ended September 3G 201
from employees’ purchase of stock through our EggeoStock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) and the exercise
of stock options, respectively. The Company usg89$00 to pay for taxes as a result of employees’
exercises of stock options and vesting of restlisteares using share withholding. As a resultnéteash
used by financing activities during fiscal year 2@tas $1,224,000.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014, thmpa@ny received $186,000 and $646,000 from
employees’ purchase of stock through our ESPP bhadexercise of stock options, respectively. The
Company used $400,000 to pay for taxes as a reksathployees’ exercises of stock options and vgstin
of restricted shares using share withholding. Aesalt, the net cash provided by financing agésitluring
fiscal year 2014 was $441,000.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013, tvap@ny received $64,000 and $136,000 from
employees’ purchase of stock through our ESPP hadexercise of stock options, respectively. The
Company used $298,000 to pay for taxes as a resathployees’ exercises of stock options and vgstin
of restricted shares using share withholding. Aesailt, the net cash used in financing activilesng
fiscal year 2013 was $95,000.

Contractual Obligations as of September 30, 2015

Payments due by period

Less than More than
Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Operating lease obligatior $ 3,798,079 $ 433,189 $ 737,709 $ 775,064 $ 1,852,117
Total $ 3,798,079 $ 433,189 $ 737,709 $ 775,064 $ 1,852,117

Operating Leases

We have entered into various non-cancelable opgrédiase agreements, including the lease in Brookly
Park, Minnesota that was entered into on Septefd&14 with a lease term that commenced on January
1, 2015. Certain of these leases have escal&mgayment provisions. We recognize rent expander
such leases on a straight-line basis over the ¢étire lease.
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Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
Quarterly data for the years ended September 3(h @0d 2014 was as follows:

Quarter Ended

December 31, March 31, June 30, September 30,
Statement of Earnings Data 2014 2015 2015 2015
Net sales $ 13,986,620 $ 12,370,784 $ 18,195911 $ 15,770,602
Gross profit 5,742,514 4,753,437 7,796,740 6,575,262
Income from operations 1,616,517 464,133 2,950,976 2,019,729
Net income 1,069,373 288,661 1,952,900 1,34
Net income per share Basic $0.08 $0.02 $0.15 $0.10
Net income per share Diluted $0.08 $0.02 $0.14 $0.10
Quarter Ended
December 31, March 31, June 30, September 30,
Statement of Earnings Data 2013 2014 2014 2014
Net sales $ 16,147,622 $ 13,213,855 $ 14,362,934 $ 14,320,881
Gross profit 6,937,645 5,720,563 6,043,453 5,897,105
Income from operations 3,072,626 1,915,552 1,858,296 1,671,652
Net income 1,982,326 1,226,305 1,174,840 049,380
Net income per share Basic $0.16 $0.09 $0.09 $0.08
Net income per share Diluted $0.15 $0.09 $0.08 $0.08

Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting StandardsrBdaFASB”) issued guidance creating Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC") Section 606, “Reveritom Contracts with Customers”. The new section
will replace Section 605, “Revenue Recognition” ardates modifications to various other revenue
accounting standards for specialized transactiows iadustries. The section is intended to conform
revenue accounting principles with a concurrersfued International Financial Reporting Standaiitts w
previously differing treatment between United Stateactice and those of much of the rest of thddyor
as well as, to enhance disclosures related to glisggted revenue information. The updated guidance
effective for annual reporting periods beginnintpabecember 15, 2017, and interim periods withat t
reporting period. Early application is permittedlyoas of annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2016, including interim periods witthiat reporting period. The Company will furtheerdy

the implications of this statement in order to ea& the expected impact on its financial statesnent

In July 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standargddate (“ASU”) 2015-11)nventory (Topic 330)
Related to Simplifying the Measurement of Invenidmich applies to all inventory except inventorgtth
is measured using last-in, first-out (“LIFO”) oethetail inventory method. Inventory measured giinst-
in, first-out (“FIFO”) or average cost is coveregdthe new amendments. Inventory within the scdjibeo
new guidance should be measured at the lower ofaomsnet realizable value. Net realizable vaduthe
estimated selling prices in the ordinary coursbusiness, less reasonably predictable costs of letiom
disposal, and transportation. Subsequent measuntésenchanged for inventory measured using LIFO
or the retail inventory method. The amendmentktalde effect for public business entities for éisgears
beginning after December 15, 2016, including imgpieriods within those fiscal years. The new guoda
should be applied prospectively, and earlier apgibn is permitted as of the beginning of an imtedr
annual reporting period. The Company is evaluatiegmpact of the standard on its financial stateis
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET
RISK

The Company is subject to changes in market intesgdes on cash, cash equivalents, and short-term
investments. These market risks have not changedisantly since September 30, 201kcreases or
decreases in interest rates will have an effedhese balances. At September 30, 2015, and 264, t
Company had cash and cash equivalents and shorirteestments totaling $25,996,000 and $24,823,000,
respectively. Most of these balances were investedterest-bearing money market accounts or CD’s
maturing within 12 months. Due to the nature esthmoney market accounts and CD’s, we believe that
we do not have any material exposure to changdwifiair value of our cash equivalents and sharte
investments as a result of changes in interess.rate

The Company uses the U.S. dollar as its functionalency. As such, fluctuations in foreign curngnc

exchange rates have historically not been mateeridde Company. Accordingly, the Company beligtves
does not have any material exposure to fluctuatiohareign currency.
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The supplementary financial information requiredthbig Item 8 is included in Item 7 under the captio
“Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited).”
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Shareholders, Audit Committee and Boardioéddors
Clearfield, Inc.
Minneapolis, MN

We have audited the accompanying balance she€lgaffield, Inc. as of September 30, 2015 and 28dd the
related statements of earnings, shareholdersyeayuit cash flows for the years then ended. Wetalse audited
Clearfield, Inc.'s internal control over financiaporting as of September 30, 2015, based onieriéstablished

in Internal Control - Integrated Frameworlssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatioh the
Treadway Commission (COSO) (2013 framework). Th#sancial statements are the responsibility of the
company's management. Our responsibility is taesgan opinion on these financial statements amg@ion

on the company's internal control over financiglarting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstia@s of the Public Company Accounting Oversighailo
(United States). Those standards require thatlaregnd perform the audit to obtain reasonablerassa about
whether the financial statements are free of netenisstatement and whether effective internal rabraver
financial reporting was maintained in all matemmabpects. Our audits of the financial statementtude
examining, on a test basis, evidence supportingti@unts and disclosures in the financial statespassessing
the accounting principles used and significantesties made by management, and evaluating the biuesalcial
statement presentation. Our audit of internalm@wtver financial reporting included obtaining@merstanding
of internal control over financial reporting, assiag the risk that a material weakness exists,tastihg and
evaluating the design and operating effectivenésst@rnal control based on the assessed risk. aDdits also
included performing such other procedures as weidered necessary in the circumstances. We beheveur
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial repogtiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassu
regarding the reliability of financial reportingéthe preparation of financial statements for exkpurposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfesz A company's internal control over financigporting
includes those policies and procedures that (pimeto the maintenance of records that, in redsendetalil,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disgositions of the assets of the company; (2)igereasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as ngctsparmit preparation of financial statementad@cordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, #ad receipts and expenditures of the companyeirghmade
only in accordance with authorizations of managedraed directors of the company; and (3) providsoeable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detectbrunauthorized acquisition, use, or dispositiontloé
company's assets that could have a material effetite financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtover financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibaffectiveness to future periods are subjec¢héorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of changamditions, or that the degree of compliance \tlii
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrecabove present fairly, in all material respedtg, financial
position of Clearfield, Inc. as of September 30,.2and 2014 and the results of its operations ast flows for
the years then ended, in conformity with accoungingciples generally accepted in the United Stafésmnerica.
Also in our opinion, Clearfield, Inc. maintained,all material respects, effective internal contreér financial
reporting as of September 30, 2015, based on ierigstablished ihnternal Control - Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatdrise Treadway Commission (COSO) (2013 framework)

/sl BAKER TILLY VIRCHOW KRAUSE, LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
November 25, 2015
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Clearfield, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying statements oingarrshareholders’ equity, and cash flows of Gielal,

Inc. (a Minnesota corporation) (the “Company”) file year ended September 30, 2013. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Compamasagement. Our responsibility is to express aniopion
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statedof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri8oa
(United States). Those standards require thataegnd perform the audit to obtain reasonablerasse about
whether the financial statements are free of malterisstatement. We were not engaged to perforaudit of
the Company’s internal control over financial repay. Our audit included consideration of interoantrol over
financial reporting as a basis for designing apdittedures that are appropriate in the circumstarfg not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effentiss of the Company’s internal control over faiain
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinin audit also includes examining, on a test hasiglence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the filmhstatements, assessing the accounting prirscied and
significant estimates made by management, as weNaluating the overall financial statement pregem. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable lbasmsur opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredcabove present fairly, in all material respedts, tesults of
operations and cash flows of Clearfield, Inc. far year ended September 30, 2013 in conformity adgdounting
principles generally accepted in the United StateSmerica.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
November 21, 2013
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CLEARFIELD, INC.
BALANCE SHEETS

September 30, September 30,
2015 2014
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 18,071,210 $ 18,191,493
Short-term investments 7,925,000 6,632,000
Accounts receivable, net 6,010,900 5,027,856
Inventories 7,182,854 5,390,342
Deferred taxes 1,146,899 2,249,435
Other current assets 416,766 543,257
Total current assets 40,753,629 38,034,383
Property, plant and equipment, net 5,689,673 2,462,250
Other Assets
Long-term investments 8,290,000 8,302,000
Goodwill 2,570,511 2,570,511
Deferred taxes - 156,622
Other 323,804 322,132
Total other assets 11,184,315 11,351,265
Total Assets $ 57,627,617 $ 51,847,898
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 2,357,791 $ 2,104,526
Accrued compensation 2,598,661 2,749,080
Accrued expenses 80,803 247,658
Total current liabilities 5,037,255 5,101,264
Other Liabilities
Deferred taxes 1,082,887 -
Deferred rent 228,345 -
Total other liabilities 1,311,232 -
Total Liabilities 6,348,487 5,101,264
Commitment and Contingencies
Shareholders’ Equity
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; 500 shares; nesha
issued or outstanding - -
Common stock, $ .01 par value; 50,000,000 shares
authorized; 13,705,658 and 13,742,964 shares issued
and outstanding at September 30, 2015 and 2014,
respectively 137,057 137,430
Additional paid-in capital 55,887,850 56,036,989
Accumulated deficit (4,745,777) (9,427,785)
Total shareholders’ equity 51,279,130 46,746,634
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 57,627,617 51,847,898

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetfirancial statements.
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Net sales

Cost of sales
Gross profit

Operating expenses

Selling, general and administrative
Income from operations

Interest income

Income before income taxes

Income tax expense
Net income

Net income per share Basic
Net income per share Diluted

CLEARFIELD, INC.

STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

Shares used in calculation of n

income per share:
Basic

Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2013
$ 60,323,917 $ 58,045,292 53,353,080
35,455,964 33,446,526 31,363,502
24,867,953 24,598,766 21,989,578
17,816,598 16,080,640 14,544,843
7,051,355 8,518,126 7,444,735
105,891 95,703 92,281
7,157,246 8,613,829 7,537,016
2,475,238 3,180,978 2,803,172
4,682,008 $ 5,432,851 4,733,844
$0.35 $0.42 $0.38
$0.34 $0.40 $0.36
13,216,010 12,916,273 12,527,153
13,587,532 13,601,594 13,078,939
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CLEARFIELD, INC.
STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common Stock Additional Accumulated Total shareholders’
Shares Amount paid-in capital deficit equity
Balance at September 30, 2012 12,830,100 $ 128,301 $ 54,152,080 $ (19,594,480 $ 34,685,901
Stock-based compensation expense - - 753,727 - 753,727
Restricted stock issuance, net 4,090 41 25 - 66
Employee stock purchase plan 35,597 356 135,625 - 135,981
Exercise of stock options, net of
shares exchanged for payment 139,455 1,394 62,606 - 64,000
Tax withholding related to vesting of
restricted stock grants and
exercise of stock options (34,979) (349) (297,639) - (297,988)
Excess tax benefit of stock options
exercised - - 2,505 - 2,505
Net income - - - 4,733,844 4,733,844
Balance at September 30, 2013 12,974,263 129,743 54,808,929 (14,860,636 40,078,036
Stock-based compensation expense - - 794,865 - 794,865
Restricted stock issuance, net 305,615 3,056 (3,056) - -
Employee stock purchase plan 17,589 176 185,408 - 185,584
Exercise of stock options, net of
shares exchanged for payment 471,603 4,716 641,737 - 646,453
Tax withholding related to vesting of
restricted stock grants and
exercise of stock options (26,106) (261) (399,368) - (399,629)
Excess tax benefit of stock options
exercised - - 8,474 - 8,474
Net income - - - 5,432,851 5,432,851
Balance at September 30, 2014 13,742,964 137,430 56,036,989 (9,427,785 46,746,634
Stock-based compensation expense - - 1,074,727 - 1,074,727
Repurchase of common stock (72,089) (721) (848,436) - (849,157)
Restricted stock forfeiture, net (7,900) (79) 79 - -
Employee stock purchase plan 20,216 202 211,257 - 211,459
Exercise of stock options, net of
shares exchanged for payment 60,011 600 42,506 - 43,106
Tax withholding related to vesting of
restricted stock grants and
exercise of stock options (37,544) (375) (638,932) - (639,307)
Excess tax benefit of stock options
exercised - - 9,660 - 9,660
Net income - - - 4,682,008 4,682,008
Balance at September 30, 2015 13,705,658 $ 137,057 $ 55,887,850 $ (4,745,777)  $ 51,279,130

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetheancial statements.
31



CLEARFIELD, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes
Loss on disposal of assets
Stock-based compensation expense
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Other current assets
Accounts payable and accrued expense
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from sale of property and equipmen
Patent additions
Sale of investments

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Repurchase of common stock
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under
employee stock purchase plan
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Excess tax benefit from exercise of stock options
Tax withholding related to vesting of restrictec
stock grants and exercise of stock options
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivaler
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental cash flow information
Cash paid during the year for income taxes

Non-cash financing activities
Cashless exercise of stock options

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2013
$ 4,682,008 $ 5,432,851 $ 4,733,844
1,216,083 699,869 476,400
2,342,045 3,019,626 642085
23,196 12,809 15,388
1,074,727 86904, 753,727
(983,044) 2,809,687 (4,814,907)
(1,792,512 236,422 (2,655,150)
121,381 (243,339) (15,157)
164,336 (1,234,039 3,280,866
6,828, 11,528,751 4,339,056
(4,518,782 (1,418,461 (1,018,453)
(10,374,000) (8,899,000) (8,683,000)
79,936 40,908 6,500
(24,418) (36,544) (18,853)
9,093,000 6,727,000 9,600,000
(5,744)264 (3,586,097) (113,806)
(849,157) s .
211,459 185,584 135,981
43,106 646,453 64,066
,660 8,474 2,505
(639,307) (399,629) (297,988)
(1,224,239) 440,882 (95,436)
(120,283) 8,383,536 4,129,814
8,191,493 9,807,957 5,678,143
$ 18,071,210 $ 18,191,493 $ 9,807,957
$ 50,850 $ 361,284 $ 153,644
$ 207,738 $ 297,883 % 242,848

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetfirancial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES

Description of BusinessClearfield, Inc., (the “Company”) is a manufactuoéa broad range of standard
and custom passive connectivity products to custerti@oughout the United States. These products
include fiber distribution systems, optical compiatse Outside Plant (“OSP”) cabinets, and fiber and
copper cable assemblies that serve the commumcatiovice provider, including Fiber-to-the-Premises
(“FTTP”), large enterprise, and original equipmargnufacturer (“OEM”) markets.

Revenue Recognition:Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidenca afrangement exists, the
product has been delivered, the fee is fixed, aacep by the customer is reasonably certain arielatiain

is reasonably assured. This generally occurs @hgument of product to the customer. Sales of the
Company’s products are subject to limited warrailigations that are included in the Company’s term
and conditions. Also, the Company offers limitéscdunts and rebates to customers which are regorde
in net sales on an estimated basis as the salescagnized. The Company records freight revebilies!

to customers as sales and the related shippindhamdling cost in cost of sales. Taxes collectedhfr
customers and remitted to governmental authoriepresented on a net basis.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:The Company considers all highly liquid investnsemtith original
maturities of three months or less to be cash edpms. Cash equivalents at September 30, 2013GiH
consist entirely of short-term money market acceunt

The Company maintains cash balances at severakfaldnstitutions, and at times, such balancegedc
insured limits. The Company has not experiencgdasses in such accounts and believes it is nuised
to any significant credit risk on cash and cashwadents.

Investments: The Company currently invests its excess cashtik bartificates of deposit (“CD’s”) that
are fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurabogporation (“FDIC)” with a term of not more thawee
years. CD’s with original maturities of more tithnee months are reported as held-to-maturity imvests
and are recorded at amortized cost, which apprarisrair value due to the negligible risk of chage
value due to interest rates. The maturity datesuofCD’s are as follows:

September 30, September 30,
2015 2014
Less than one year $ 7,925,000 $ 6,632,000
1-3 years 8,290,000 8,302,000
Total $ 16,215,000 $ 14,934,000

Accounts ReceivableCredit is extended based on the evaluation of somes’s financial condition and
collateral is generally not required. Accountst thege outstanding longer than the contractual payme
terms are considered past due. The Company ddeshaage interest on past due receivables. The
Company determines its allowance by consideringraber of factors, including the length of time &ad
receivables are past due, the Company’s previass history, the customer’s current ability to pty |
obligation to the Company, and the condition of ¢femeral economy and the industry as whole. The
Company writes off accounts receivable when thephbe uncollectible; payments subsequently received
on such receivables are credited to the allowamcddubtful accounts.
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued

The allowance for doubtful accounts activity foe tyears ended September 30, 2015, 2014 and 2@%3 is
follows:

Additions
Balance at Charged to Balance
Beginning Costs and Less at End
Year Ended of Year Expenses Write-offs of Year
September 30, 2015 $ 97,950 $ = $ (18,477) $ 79,473
September 30, 2014 97,950 - - 97,950
September 30, 2013 97,950 - - 97,950

Fair Value of Financial Instruments: The financial statements include the following fioal
instruments: cash and cash equivalents, short-tewestments, long-term investments, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and accrued expen€¢ker than long-term investments, all financial
instruments’ carrying values approximate fair valbecause of the short-term nature of the instrésnen
Long-term investments’ carrying value approximdtas value due to the negligible risk of changes in
value due to interest rates.

Inventories: Inventories consist of finished goods, raw materéaid work in process and are stated at the
lower of average cost (which approximates firsfinst out) or market. Inventory is valued usingterial
costs, labor charges, and allocated factory overbkearges and consists of the following:

September 30, September 30,
2015 2014
Raw materials $ 4,811,993 $ 3,729,160
Work-in-process 310,149 292,557
Finished goods 2,060,712 1,368,625
$ 7,182,854 $ 5,390,342

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or mark@n a regular basis, the Company reviews its itorgn
and identifies that which is excess, slow movingl absolete by considering factors such as invgntor
levels, expected product life, and forecasted sdémand. Any identified excess, slow moving, and
obsolete inventory is written down to its markelueathrough a charge to cost of sales. It is fbesshat
additional inventory write-down charges may be regfliin the future if there is a significant deelim
demand for the Company’s products and the Compamg ahot adjust its manufacturing production
accordingly.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Property, plant and equipment are recorded at &ighificant additions

or improvements extending asset lives are capa@dlizvhile repairs and maintenance are charged to
expense when incurred. Depreciation is provideadrnounts sufficient to relate the cost of assets to
operations over their estimated useful lives. ebafl improvements are amortized over the shoftiéreo
remaining term of the lease or estimated life efdhset. Estimated useful lives of the assewsdialows:

Years
Equipment 3-7
Leasehold improvements 7-10 or life of lease
Vehicles 3
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued

Property, plant and equipment consist of the foithau

September 30, September 30,
2015 2014

Manufacturing Equipment $ 4,102,868 $ 3,057,665
Office Equipment 2,655,088 1,985,409
Leasehold Improvements 2,414,133 320,218
Vehicles 193,702 192,321
9,365,791 5,555,613

Less accumulated depreciation 3,676,118 3,093,363
$ 5,689,673 $ 2,462,250

Depreciation expense for the years ended Septed®h@015, 2014 and 2013 were $1,214,512, $699,306
and $475,524, respectively.

Goodwill and Patents: The Company operates as one reporting unit andwswhe carrying amount of
goodwill annually in the fourth quarter of eachcékyear and more frequently if events or changes i
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounthefassets may not be recoverable. The Company
determines its fair value for goodwill impairmeasting purposes by calculating its market capadiiin

and comparing that to the Company’s carrying vallibe Company’s goodwill impairment test for the
years ended September 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013ecksnlexcess fair value over carrying value and
therefore, no adjustments were made to goodwillring the year ended September 30, 2015, there were
no triggering events that indicated goodwill cob&limpaired.

A significant reduction in our market capitalizatior in the carrying amount of net assets of antapp

unit could result in an impairment charge. If taerying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its falue,

the Company would measure the possible goodwilbinmpent loss based on an allocation of the estimate
of fair value of the reporting unit to all of thaderlying assets and liabilities of the reportimg Lincluding

any previously unrecognized intangible assets. &xeess of the fair value of a reporting unit othex
amounts assigned to its assets and liabilitiesasrmplied fair value of goodwill. An impairmerass is
recognized to the extent that a reporting unitemed goodwill exceeds the implied fair value addwill.

An impairment loss would be based on significaninestes and judgments, and if the facts and
circumstances change, a potential impairment cbalee a material impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

No impairment of goodwill has occurred during theass ended September 30, 2015, 2014 or 2013,
respectively.

The Company capitalizes legal costs incurred taiolgpatents. Once accepted by either the U.SnPate
Office or the equivalent office of a foreign coyntthese legal costs are amortized using the siréiite
method over the remaining estimated lives, not edicey 20 years. As of September 30, 2015, the
Company has five patents granted and five pendiptications inside the United States.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets: The Company assesses potential impairments toritsllved assets

or asset groups when there is evidence that ew&ets or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset or asset group mapeotcovered. An impairment loss is recognizedrnwhe
the carrying amount of the long-lived asset or ags®ip is not recoverable and exceeds its fawe/allhe
carrying amount of a long-lived asset or asset grisunot recoverable if it exceeds the sum of the
undiscounted cash flows expected to result fronuigeand eventual disposition of the asset or gssep.
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued

Any required impairment loss is measured as theuamby which the carrying amount of a long-lived
asset or asset group exceeds its fair value aeddsded as a reduction in the carrying value efrétated
asset or asset group and a charge to operatinjsteo impairment of long-lived assets has ocdirr
during the years ended September 30, 2015, 2012Gi®I

Income Taxes:The Company records income taxes in accordandetigtliability method of accounting.
Deferred taxes are recognized for the estimatesstakimately payable or recoverable based on edact
tax law. The Company establishes a valuation @ime to reduce the deferred tax assets when i m
likely than not that a deferred tax asset will betrealizable. Changes in tax rates are refldéntéue tax
provision as they occur.

In accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, eeognize the financial statement benefit of a @sitpn

only after determining that the relevant tax adtijovould more likely than not sustain the position
following an audit. For tax positions meeting there likely than not threshold, the amount recogghin

the financial statements is the largest benefitliha a greater than 50 percent likelihood of bedadjzed
upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax ariti. As of September 30, 2015, the Company thots
have any unrecognized tax benefits. The Compaoggrezes interest and penalties accrued on any
unrecognized tax benefits as a component of indamexpense. We do not expect any material changes
in our unrecognized tax benefits over the next datims.

Stock-Based CompensationWe measure and recognize compensation expensallf@tock-based
payments at fair value over the requisite servargog. We use the Black-Scholes option pricing eldol
determine the weighted average fair value of optioRor restricted stock grants, fair value is aeieed

as the average price of the Company’s stock omldite of grant. Equity-based compensation expense i
included in selling, general and administrativeenges. The determination of fair value of stockelia
payment awards on the date of grant using an opti@ing model is affected by our stock price adl &g

by assumptions regarding a number of subjectivbles. These variables include, but are not édhtbo,

the expected stock price volatility over the terhthe awards, and actual and projected employexk sto
option exercise behaviors.

The expected terms of the options are based oma@hs of historical and expected future employee
exercise behavior. The risk-free interest rateaised on the U.S. Treasury rates at the date of giith
maturity dates approximately equal to the expelitedit grant date. Volatility is based on histali and
expected future volatility of the Company’s stodkhe Company has not historically issued any divilie
and does not expect to in the future. Forfeitimes®oth option and restricted stock grants arereded at
the time of the grant and revised in subsequenbgeif actual forfeitures differ from estimates.

If factors change and we employ different assummgtio the determination of the fair value of grants

future periods, the related compensation experdaviirecord may differ significantly from what \wave
recorded in the current periods.
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued

Net Income Per ShareBasic and diluted net income per share is compoyetividing net income by the
weighted average number of common shares outstamtid the weighted average number of dilutive
shares outstanding, respectively. Weighted avecagemon shares outstanding for the years ended
September 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

Year ended September 30, 2015 2014 2013
Net income $ 4,682,008 $ 5,432,851 $ 4,733,844
Weighted average common shares 13,216,010 12,916,273 12,527,153
Dilutive potential common share: 371,522 685,321 551,786
Weighted average dilutive

common shares outstanding 13,587,532 13,601,594 13,078,939
Earnings per share:

Basic $0.35 $0.42 $0.38

Diluted $0.34 $0.40 $0.36

There were no potentially dilutive shares excludesim the calculation above for the years ended
September 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013.

Use of Estimates:The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Amerequires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts @ftsssd liabilities, related revenues and expeasds
disclosure about contingent assets and liabiliieshe date of the financial statements. Sigmifica
estimates include the deferred tax asset valuatiowance, the valuation of our inventory, rebatdated

to revenue recognition, performance compensati@nuats and the valuation of long-lived assets and
goodwill. Actual results may differ materially frothese estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements:

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting StandardsrBdaFASB”) issued guidance creating Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC") Section 606, “Reveritom Contracts with Customers”. The new section
will replace Section 605, “Revenue Recognition” amrdates modifications to various other revenue
accounting standards for specialized transactiows iadustries. The section is intended to conform
revenue accounting principles with a concurrersfued International Financial Reporting Standaiitts w
previously differing treatment between United Stateactice and those of much of the rest of thddyor
as well as, to enhance disclosures related to glisggted revenue information. The updated guidance
effective for annual reporting periods beginninggaDecember 15, 2017, and interim periods withat t
reporting period. Early application is permittedlyoas of annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2016, including interim periods witthiat reporting period. The Company will furtheerdy

the implications of this statement in order to e the expected impact on its financial statesnent

In July 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standatddate (“ASU”) 2015-11)nventory (Topic 330)
Related to Simplifying the Measurement of Invenidmich applies to all inventory except inventorgtth

is measured using last-in, first-out (“LIFO”) oethetail inventory method. Inventory measured giinst-

in, first-out (“FIFO”) or average cost is coveregdthe new amendments. Inventory within the scdjibeo
new guidance should be measured at the lower ofacmsnet realizable value. Net realizable vaduihe
estimated selling prices in the ordinary coursbusiness, less reasonably predictable costs of letiom
disposal, and transportation. Subsequent measuntésenchanged for inventory measured using LIFO
or the retail inventory method. The amendmentktalde effect for public business entities for éisgears
beginning after December 15, 2016, including imgpieriods within those fiscal years. The new guida
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NOTE A — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICI ES - Continued

should be applied prospectively, and earlier appba is permitted as of the beginning of an imbear
annual reporting period. The Company is evaluatiegmpact of the standard on its financial stateis

NOTE B — COMMITMENTS AND FACILITIES

Operating Leases: The Company leases office and manufacturingifiesilin Brooklyn Park, Minnesota

for its ongoing operations. The lease term comméran January 1, 2015. The Company also leases
various pieces of office equipment. Certain othéeases have escalating rent payment provisidfes.
recognize rent expense under such leases on ghstliaie basis over the term of the lease. Forydaas
ended September 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013, totalesgregnse was $630,000, $505,000 and $450,000
respectively.

As of September 30, 2015, the future minimum lgesanents required under operating lease agreements
are as follows:

Year ending September 30 Operating leases
2016 $ 433,189
2017 364,300
2018 373,409
2019 382,746
2020 392,318
Thereatfter 1,852,117
Total minimum lease payments $ 3,798,079

Share Repurchase: On November 13, 2014, the Company announceditth&oard of directors had
approved a stock repurchase program under whveitl purchase up to $8 million of its outstandiritases

of common stock. The program does not obligateafikdd to repurchase any particular amount of
common stock during any period. The repurchadébeifunded by cash on hand. The repurchase progra
is expected to continue indefinitely until the maxm dollar amount of shares has been repurchased or
until the repurchase program is earlier modifiegpgended or terminated by the board of directéisof
September 30, 2015, the Company may repurchase $if3151,000 of its outstanding shares of common
stock.

NOTE C — SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The Board of Directors may, by resolution, est&ibiiem the undesignated shares different classesr@s
of shares and may fix the relative rights and pesfees of shares in any class or series. The Qonipa
authorized to issue 500 shares of preferred stodsa,000,000 shares of common stock at $.01 pae va
The Company has not issued any shares of prefsioe.

Stock-Based CompensationThe Company’s stock-based compensation plans aninestered by the
Compensation Committee of the Board of Director$jctv selects persons to receive awards and
determines the number of shares subject to eactdaama the terms, conditions, performance measures
and other provisions of the award.

Stock Options: The Company uses the Black-Scholes option-prigindel to estimate fair value of stock-

based awards. The Company did not grant stockmptiuring the years ended September 30, 2015, 2014
and 2013.
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NOTE C — SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY - Continued

The Company has two equity compensation plans wdrielused as an incentive for directors, officans,
other employees. The director’'s plan was termthateFebruary of 2010 and 67,500 authorized but
unissued shares were removed from the plan. QOptéoe generally granted at fair market values
determined on the date of grant and vesting noynoalturs over a three to five-year period. Theimaxn
contractual term is normally six years. Howevetjans granted to directors have a one year vepgnigd

and a six year contractual term. Shares issued exercise of a stock option are new shares. riptoyee

plan has 354,114 shares available for issue asepfeSber 30, 2015. As of September 30, 2015,
$4,232,496 of total unrecognized compensation es@eelated to non-vested awards is expected to be
recognized over a period of approximately 9.1 yedise number of options vested during the yeaednd
September 30, 2015 was 59,090 with a total gratetfdér value of $373,271 and a weighted averagatgr
date fair value of $6.32. The Company recordedtedl compensation expense for the years ended
September 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013 of $1,074,7294,865, and $753,727, respectively. For the year
ended September 30, 2015, there were 56,767 spicine that were exercised using a cashless method
exercise. The intrinsic value of options exercidedng the years ended September 30, 2015 and 2014
was $876,841 and $7,522,553, respectively. Thimait value of options exercisable as of Septer8ber
2015 is $2,420,521.

Option transactions under these plans during thesyended September 30, 2015 and 2014 are sumtharize
as follows:

Number of Weighted average Weighted
shares exercise price average fair value
Outstanding at September 30, 201 863,519 $3.24
Granted - - -
Cancelled or Forfeited (2,450) 4.43
Exercised (488,018) 1.94
Outstanding at September 30, 201 373,051 4.93
Granted - - -
Cancelled or Forfeited (2,500) 6.36
Exercised (73,167) 3.43
Outstanding at September 30, 201 297,384 $5.29

The following table summarizes information concegwptions exercisable under the equity compensatio
plans:

Weighted average Weighted average
Year ended Exercisable  remaining contractual life exercise price
September 30, 2015 297,384 1.57 years $5.29
September 30, 2014 313,851 2.63 years $4.67

The following table summarizes information concegnoptions currently outstanding at:

Weighted Weighted
average average Aggregate
Number remaining exercise intrinsic
Year Ended outstanding contractual life price value
September 30, 201 297,384 1.57 years $5.29 $2,420,521
September 30, 2014 373,051 2.52 years $4.93 $2,908,849
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NOTE C — SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY — Continued

Restricted Stock: The Company’s 2007 Stock Compensation Plan peounitCompensation Committee
to grant other stock-based awards. The Companydavta key employees restricted stock grants thstt v
over one to ten years.

Restricted stock transactions during the yearseSaptember 30, 2015 and 2014 are summarized as
follows:

Number of Weighted average

shares grant date fair value
Unvested shares at September 30, 20. 292,290 $5.11
Granted 307,615 13.39
Vested (79,390) 5.15
Forfeited (2,000) 5.10
Unvested shares at September 30, 20. 518,515 10.02
Granted 7,300 13.69
Vested (101,485) 17.07
Forfeited (15,200) 10.80
Unvested shares at September 30, 20. 409,130 $9.97

The Company repurchased a total of 33,896 sharearafommon stock at an average price of $16.89 in
connection with payment of taxes upon the vestingestricted stock previously issued to employegs f
the year ended September 30, 2015. The Companyctegsed a total of 16,560 shares of our common
stock at an average price of $13.61 in connectitim payment of taxes upon the vesting of restristedk
previously issued to employees for the year endgesnber 30, 2014.

Employee Stock Purchase PlariThe Clearfield, Inc. 2010 Employee Stock Purchdaae PStock Plan”)
allows participating employees to purchase sharseoCompany’s common stock at a discount through
payroll deductions. The Stock Plan is availablalt@mployees subject to certain eligibility regunents.
Terms of the Stock Plan provide that participagngployees may purchase the Company’s common stock
on a voluntary after tax basis. Employees maylmse the Company’s common stock at a price that is
less than the lower of 85% of the fair market valfiene share of common stock at the beginninghdr e

of each stock purchase period or phase. The Rakis carried out in six-month phases, with phase
beginning on July 1 and January 1 of each caleystar. For the phases that ended on December 34, 20
and June 30, 2015, employees purchased 10,0970aht91shares, respectively, at a price of $10.46 pe
share. For the phases that ended on Decembef83 ,ahd June 30, 2014, employees purchased 10,920
and 6,669 shares, respectively, at prices of $8128$14.27 per share, respectively. As of SepteBibe
2015, the Company has withheld approximately $@ f86m employees participating in the phase that
began on July 1, 2015. After the employee purcloaséune 30, 2015, 165,440 shares of common stock
were available for future purchase under the SRiak.

NOTE D — INCOME TAXES

Realization of net operating loss carry-forward atiter deferred tax temporary differences are ngetit
upon future taxable earnings. The Company’s dedetax assets were reviewed for expected utilinatio
by assessing the available positive and negatterfasurrounding its recoverability.

As of September 30, 2014, the Company’s remainglgation allowance of approximately $848,000
related to state net operating loss carry forwaBigring the fourth quarter of 2015, the Comparnsersed
a portion of its remaining valuation allowance aiity related to the expiration of state net oparat
losses in 2015. The remaining valuation allowdredance as of September 30, 2015 of $659,000 selate
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NOTE D — INCOME TAXES - Continued

entirely to state net operating loss carry forwarmgsdo not expect to utilize. Approximately $33)0df

the valuation allowance is short-term and $624j800ng-term, against its remaining deferred tesets

The Company will continue to assess the assumptises to determine the amount of our valuation
allowance and may adjust the valuation allowanciiiare periods based on changes in assumptions of
estimated future income and other factors. If\hRriation allowance is reduced, we would record an
income tax benefit in the period the valuation\aloce is reduced. If the valuation allowance ¢séased,

we would record additional income tax expense.

The valuation allowance activity for the years eh&eptember 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

Reversal
Balance at for State Balance at
Beginning Income Tax NOL End of
Year Ended of Year Benefit Expiration Year

September 30, 201E $ 847,826 $ (53,836) $ (135,182) $ 658,808
September 30, 2014 975,258 - (127,432) 847,826
September 30, 2013 975,258 - - 975,258

Significant components of deferred income tax asaed liabilities are as follows at:

September 30, September 30,
2015 2014
Current deferred income tax assets (liabilities):
Inventories $ 309,791 $ 292,675
Accrued expenses and reserves 261,452 297,336
Prepaid expenses (42,304) (42,722)
Net operating loss carry forwards and credits 652,533 1,752,291
1,181,472 2,299,580
Valuation allowance (34,573) (50,145)
Net current deferred tax asset $ 1,146,899 $ 2,249,435
Long-term deferred income tax assets (liabilities):
Intangibles $ (39,819) $ (30,028)
Property and equipment depreciation (726,035) 18,091
Net operating loss carry forwards and credits 938,168 1,531,315
Stock-based compensation 49,926 57,573
Accrued expenses and reserves 25,887 3,369
Goodwill (706,779) (626,018)
(458,652) 954,302
Valuation allowance (624,235) (797,680)
Net long-term deferred tax (liability) asset $ (1,082,887 $ 156,622

As of September 30, 2015 and 2014, the currentiectax receivable was approximately $48,000 and
$127,000, respectively.

As of September 30, 2015, the Company had U.Srdédet operating loss (“NOL") carry forwards of

approximately $5.4 million. The U.S. federal npemting loss carry forwards will expire in 2028atingh
2028 if not utilized. As of September 30, 201%® @ompany had state net operating loss carry faisvar
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NOTE D — INCOME TAXES - Continued

of approximately $13.8 million. The state net @exg loss carry forwards will expire in 2016 thgbu
2022 if not utilized.

The Company completed an Internal Revenue Cod@8&82 analysis of the loss carry forwards in 2009
and determined then that all of the Company’s tassy forwards are utilizable and not restrictedem
Section 382. The Company has not updated its @e882 analysis subsequent to 2009 and does not
believe there have been any events subsequen@®t2ét would impact the analysis.

Deferred tax assets relating to equity compensdtéme been reduced to reflect tax deductions iesxc
of previously recorded tax benefits through therysraled September 30, 2015. Our federal NOL carry
forwards referenced above at September 30, 20lGdmcapproximately $5.3 million of income tax
deductions in excess of previously recorded taxefisrfor equity based awards. Although the addii

tax deductions are reflected in NOL carry forwareferenced above, the related tax benefit will mot
recognized until the deductions reduce taxes payabl

Accordingly, since the tax benefit does not rediheeCompany’s current taxes payable in 2015, tteese
benefits are not reflected in the Company’s defetsex assets presented above. The tax benefit of
approximately $1,869,000 as of September 30, 26thbed to these excess deductions will be reflezted

a credit to additional paid-in capital when recagui.

The following is a reconciliation of the federadtsitory income tax rate to the consolidated eféectax
rate as a percent of pre-tax income for the follmnyears ended:

September 30, September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2013
Federal statutory rate 34% 34% 34%
State income taxes 1% 1% 1%
Permanent differences 1% 2% 2%
Change in valuation allowance (3%) (1%) -
Expiration of state NOL's 2% 1% -
Tax rate 35% 37% 37%

Components of the income tax expense are as foflomtbe years ended:

September 30, September 30, September 30,
2015 2014 2013
Current:
Federal $ 67,373 $ 115,049 $ 180,706
State 65,820 46,303 58,421
133,193 161,352 239,127
Deferred:
Federal 2,377,590 2,903,110 2,455,015
State (35,545) 116,516 109,030
2,342,045 3,019,626 2,564,045
Income tax expense $ 2,475,238 $ 3,180,978 $ 2,803,172

The Company is required to recognize the finanstatement benefit of a tax position only after
determining that the relevant tax authority wouldrenlikely than not sustain the position followiag
audit. For tax positions meeting the more likélgrt notthreshold, the amount recognized in the financial
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NOTE D — INCOME TAXES - Continued

statements is the largest benefit that has a gribate 50 percent likelihood of being realized uptimate
settlement with the relevant tax authority. Thanpany applies the interpretation to all tax possidor
which the statute of limitations remained opene Tompany had no liability for unrecognized taxdfis
and did not recognize any interest or penaltiesaduhe years ended September 30, 2015, 2014,1&. 20

The Company is subject to income taxes in the &&eral jurisdiction, and various state jurisdingo
Tax regulations within each jurisdiction are subjex the interpretation of the related tax laws and
regulations and require significant judgment tolpppwith few exceptions, the Company is no longer
subject to U.S. federal, state and local, incomestaminations by tax authorities for fiscal yeansling
prior to 2000. We are generally subject to U.8efal and state tax examinations for all tax ysarse
1999 due to our net operating loss carryforwardbthe utilization of the carryforwards in yeardl tpen
under statute. The Company changed its fiscal gnediin 2007 from March 31 to September 30.

NOTE E — CONCENTRATIONS

Suppliers: The Company purchases critical components fopmatucts, including injection molded parts
and connectors from third parties, some of whomsarngle- or limited-source suppliers. If any ofrou
suppliers are unable to ship critical componenespvay be unable to manufacture and ship productsrto
distributors or customers. If the price of theemponents increases for any reason, or if thesglisup
are unable or unwilling to deliver, we may havdina another source, which could result in intetioips,
increased costs, delays, loss of sales and qualitirol problems.

Customers: The following table summarizes customers compgidid% or more of net sales for the years
ended September 30, 2015, 2014, and 2013:

Year Ended September 30,

2015 2014 2013
Customer A 25% 19% 19%
Customer B * 21% 23%

* Less than 10%

As of September 30, 2015, Customers C and A acedufar 17% and 14% of accounts receivable,
respectively. As of September 30, 2014, Customacc@unted for 10% of accounts receivable.

NOTE F — EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company maintains a contributory 401(k) prstfiiaring benefit plan, whereby eligible employeeg ma
contribute a portion of their earnings, not to edannual amounts allowed under the Internal Revenu
Code. For the years ended September 30, 2014Cr&lehd through December 31, 2014, the Company
matched 100% of the first 3% and 50% of the nexta?¥he participant’s eligible compensation thatwa
contributed by the participant. Effective Janubr2015, the Company matched 100% of the first 88 a
50% of the next 3% of the participant’s eligiblequensation that was contributed by the participdine
Company’s contributions under this plan were $468,8379,630 and $290,652 for the years ended
September 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management carried out an evaluatiwer the supervision and with the participatibn o
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and the Conym Chief Financial Officer of the effectiveneds o
the design and operation of the Company’s discesontrols and procedures (as such term is defimed
Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange At98#, as amended) as of September 30, 2015. Based
upon that evaluation, the Company’s Chief Execu@¥ficer and the Company’s Chief Financial Officer
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controts@ncedures were effective.

Management’'s Annual Report on Internal Control overFinancial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingraaititaining an adequate system of internal control
over financial reporting, as such term is definedRuule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act. Under the
supervision and with the participation of our magragnt, including our Chief Executive Officer and ou
Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluatainthe effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting based on the framework in tBé2nternal Control — Integrated Frameworgsued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of theafiway Commission. Based on that evaluation,
management concluded that, as of September 30, 20t3nternal control over financial reporting was
effective. Management reviewed the results aisteessment with our Audit Committee. The effeciss

of our internal control over financial reporting @sSeptember 30, 2015 has been audited by BakKgr Ti
Virchow Krause, LLP, an independent registered ipudtcounting firm, as stated in its report whish i
included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on FormK.0

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirng

No changes in the Company’s internal control oimarfcial reporting occurred during the fourth qaart
of fiscal year 2015 that have materially affectachre reasonably likely to materially affect, @@mpany’s
internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.

PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

Information required by Item 10 to be included ur ®roxy Statement for our 2016 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders (the “2016 Proxy Statement”), whici e filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A within 12@dafter the end of the fiscal year for which this
report is filed, is incorporated herein by refeno this section.

44



ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 to be includethe 2016 Proxy Statement, is incorporated hdrgin
reference into this section.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Item 12 to be includethe 2016 Proxy Statement, is incorporated hdrgin
reference into this section.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND
DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 to be includlethe 2016 Proxy Statement, is incorporated hdrgin
reference into this section.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 to be includethe 2016 Proxy Statement, is incorporated hdrgin
reference into this section.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Documents filed as part of this report.
D Financial Statements.

The financial statements of Clearfield, Inc. atediherewith under Item 8. “Financial Statements

and Supplementary Data” of this Annual Report orm-0-K.

(2) Certain financial statement schedules have beetted because they are not required, not
applicable, or the required information is provideather financial statements or the notes to the

financial statements.

(b)  Exhibits.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Incorporated
Number Description by Reference to
3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation, of APA @ptilnc.| Exhibit 3.1 to Registrant’s
(n/k/a Clearfield, Inc.) dated November 3, 1983 aQuarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
Articles of Amendment dated December 9, 1983, Juhe quarter ended September B0,
30, 1987, March 22, 1989, September 14, 1994 | &aD0
August 17, 2000
3.1(a)| Articles of Amendment to Articles of Incorption| Exhibit 3.1 to Registrant’s
dated August 25, 2004 Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 30,
2004
3.2 Bylaws, as amended and restated effective Bapt7,| Exhibit 3.2 to Registrant’s Annual
1999 of Clearfield, Inc. (f/k/a APA Optics, Inc.) Report on Form 10-KSB for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 1999
10.1 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors Exhibit 10.3a to Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-KSB
for the fiscal year ended March 31,
1994
*10.2 Insurance agreement by and between the Ragistnd| Exhibit 10.5 to Registrant’s Annual
Anil K. Jain Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 1990
*10.3 Form of Agreement regarding Indemnificatioi | dxhibit 10.7 to Registrant’s Annual
Directors and Officers with, among others MessiReport on Form 10-K for the fiscal
Roth and Zuckerman year ended March 31, 2002
10.4 Lease Agreement dated May 31, 2006 between [Hashibit 10.14 to Registrant’s
Lake Realty, LLC and Clearfield, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K far
the fiscal year ended March 31,
2006.
*10.5 2007 Stock Compensation Plan, as amended AlpeA to the Registrant’'s
Proxy Statement for the 2011
Annual Meeting of Shareholdefs
held on February 24, 2011.
*10.6 Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2808Exhibit 10.26 to Registrant’s
and between Clearfield, Inc. and Cheryl P. Beranek.Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 16, 2008
*10.7 Employment Agreement dated December 16, 2808Exhibit 10.27 to Registrant’s
and between Clearfield, Inc. and John P. Hill. Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 16, 2008
*10.8 Clearfield, Inc. Code 280G Tax Gross Up Paymexhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s

Plan Adopted November 18, 2010

Current Report on Form 8-K datg
November 18, 2010.

2d
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Incorporated

S
0
s

UJ

ad

UJ

ad

Number Description by Reference to
10.9 Clearfield, Inc. 2010 Employee Stock Purcliise Appendix A to the Registrant
Proxy Statement for the 201
Annual Meeting of Shareholde
held on February 25, 2010.
10.10 First Amendment to Lease and First AmendnbentExhibit 10.1 to Registrant’
First Amended and Restated License Agreement daBearent Report on Form 8-K datg
March 28, 2013 by and between Clearfield, Inc. anhrch 28, 2013.
Bass Lake Realty LLC
10.11 Standard Form Industrial Building Lease datBshibit 10.1 to Registrant’
September 9, 2014 by and between Clearfield, imt.| &urrent Report on Form 8-K daté
First Industrial, L.P. September 10, 2014.
23.1 Consent of Grant Thornton LLP *
23.2 Consent of Baker Tilly Virchow Krause, LLP *x
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer (paipal | **
executive officer) Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a)koutt
14(a) of the Exchange Act
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer (pdipal | **
financial officer) Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) &hd-
14(a) of the Exchange Act
32 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Reipal | **
Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350
101.INS | XBRL Instance Document **
101.SCH| XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema **
101.CAL | XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase *x
101.LAB | XBRL Taxonomy Labels Linkbase i
101.PRE| XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase **
101.DEF| XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase *x

* Indicates a management contract or compensataryqr arrangement.

** Indicates exhibit filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&fdhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the

Registrant has duly caused this report to be sigmedts behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

Clearfield, Inc.

Date: November 25, 2015 /s/ Cheryl P. Beranek

Cheryl P. Beranek
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Regnt and in the capacities and on the datesaneil.
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Each person whose signature appears below herelstitates and appoints Cheryl P. Beranek and Daniel
Herzog and each of them, as his true and lawfafray-in-fact and agent, with full power of subsiin,

to sign on his behalf, individually and in eacha&eipy stated below, all amendments to this FornKXhd

to file the same, with all exhibits thereto and asiier documents in connection therewith, with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, granting uatd attorneys-in-fact and agents full power and
authority to do and perform each and every actthimd requisite and necessary to be done in andtabo
the premises, as fully and to all intents and psegas each might or could do in person, herebyinat

and confirming each act that said attorneys-indact agents may lawfully do or cause to be donérhye
thereof.

Signatures Title Date

/sl Cheryl P. Beranek President, Chief Executive Officer and November 25, 2015
Cheryl P. Beranek Director (principal executive officer )

/sl Daniel Herzog Chief Financial Officer (principal November 25, 2015
Daniel Herzog financial and accounting officer)

/s/ Ronald G. Roth Director November 25, 2015

Ronald G. Roth

/s/ John G. Reddan Director November 25, 2015
John G. Reddan

/s/ Stephen L. Zuckerman M.D. Director November 25, 2015
Stephen L. Zuckerman

/s/ Donald R. Hayward Director November 25, 2015
Donald R. Hayward

/sl Charles N. Hayssen Director November 25, 2015
Charles N. Hayssen

[s/ Patrick F. Goepel Director November 25, 2015
Patrick F. Goepel
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Regqistered Public Accountingirm

We have issued our report dated November 21, 20itl3 respect to the financial statements included i
the Annual Report of Clearfield, Inc. on Form 1(d€ the year ended September 30, 2015. We hereby
consent to the incorporation by reference of sgpart in the Registration Statements of Clearfild, on
Forms S-8 (File No. 333-44500, File No. 333-13682& No. 333-151504, File No. 333-166495 and File
No. 333-173793).

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
November 25, 2015
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Exhibit 23.2

Consent of Independent Regqistered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statements on Form S-8 (File No.
333-44500, File No. 333-136828, File No. 333-151 30k No. 333-166495 and File No. 333-173793) of
Clearfield, Inc. of our report datedovember 25, 2015, relating to the financial staets and the
effectiveness of internal control over financigleging, which appears in this annual report omid0-K

for the year ended September 30, 2015.

/sl BAKER TILLY VIRCHOW KRAUSE, LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
November 25, 2015
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Cheryl P. Beranek, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKClearfield, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésaentain any untrue statement of a material dacmit
to state a material fact necessary to make themstatts made, in light of the circumstances undéctwduch
statements were made, not misleading with respebiet period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeartd, other financial information included in thisnaal
report, fairly represent in all material respebis financial condition, results of operations aadicflows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods preskint¢his annual report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintairisglosure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangeRAub¢s 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal contro
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Rales 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedureszaased such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervisiansare that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidigrissmade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig annual report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr; or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our suigem, to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the pegption of financial statements for external pugos
in accordance with generally accepted accountiimgipies;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sld&ire controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiversdste disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report basesluch evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsainternal control financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisparter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has materiffbgt@d, or is reasonably likely to materially affe
the registrant’s control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) ahdhave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant’s auditors and the audit committee oféggstrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the egjeint functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal costrol
over financial reporting which are reasonably jk&d adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financiarinétion; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavmanagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal ca$r over financial reporting.

November 25, 2015

[s/ Cheryl P. Beranek
Cheryl P. Beranek

Chief Executive Officer
(Principal executive officer)
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Daniel Herzog, certify that:

=

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fiClearfield, Inc.;

N

Based on my knowledge, this annual report doésaentain any untrue statement of a material dacmit
to state a material fact necessary to make themstatts made, in light of the circumstances undéctwduch
statements were made, not misleading with respebiet period covered by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeartd, other financial information included in thisnaal
report, fairly represent in all material respebis financial condition, results of operations aadicflows of
the registrant as of, and for, the periods preskint¢his annual report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintairisglosure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangeRAub¢s 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal contro
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Rales 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduressaased such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervisiansare that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidigrissmade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig annual report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our sugem, to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the pegption of financial statements for external pugsos
in accordance with generally accepted accountiimgipies;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sld&ire controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiversdste disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report basesluch evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmisainternal control financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisparter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in
the case of an annual report) that has materiffbgt@d, or is reasonably likely to materially affe
the registrant’s control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) ahdhave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant’s auditors and the audit committee ofégistrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the egjeivt functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal costrol
over financial reporting which are reasonably jk&d adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financiarinétion; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavmanagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal canig over financial reporting.

November 25, 2015

/sl Daniel Herzog

Daniel Herzog

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal financial and accounting officer)
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Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION

The undersigned certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C0O1B4t:

Date:

The accompanying Annual Report on Form 10-Ktier period ended September 30, 2015 fully
complies with the requirements of Sections 13(a)5gd) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
and

The information contained in the Report fairlegents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

November 25, 2015

/sl Cheryl P. Beranek
Cheryl P. Beranek
Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Daniel Herzoqg
Daniel Herzog
Chief Financial Officer
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